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ln the m@m?tm" M' M"m Inquiry against Prof. Ashok
Miﬂtmﬁ Vﬁm?: Chancellor (abstained from me

Hlmmm@ Amhedk&r University, CAgra

m«@mmm& %37 the Hon’ble Chancellor of the said
umwmaﬁn‘éty m@l@ @ﬁ“ﬁ@@ Mem@ N@" B- 4%«4@- mm@
o5t le]}iy, 2@’7’1
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The Hon ble Ch ancellor State of Uttar P1 adesh Lucknow has v1de
Offic e Memo No. E 4254 dated 05™ July, 2021 (Axmnexure A-ﬂ/ 1

to A 1/6) COllbUtUted ﬂ]jb Inquny C%mmt!pe to enquue mto the

complcums 1e<,elvc,d in the Ho@ Chancellor’s Sc—:cnutauat
agcunst Prof. Ashok Mlltalkg\\gt)e Chancd}m (Jbstamed from
ka) D1 unnao Ar %&m; Unlvusxty, Aom Mr. Szmjeev'
Kumal Reglsmzu hlmlao Ambedkcu Umveiblty Ag Ta,
(helemaﬂer be @?‘d as he Umvels]ty) ‘was nonmmled as
Plesmtmg OE&Q :

Complal ele received in the office of the Lhanceﬂm dgamsl

Prof. AQhOk Mmal Vice Chancellox (absmmed ﬁom work), Dr.

before llns Inquu y Committee.

Bhlm]ao Ambedkar Umvexsﬂy, Agla who ‘will hereinafter be
referred as ‘the d.elinquent. ofﬁcer Prof Ashok Mittal’. These
complamts 1ecelvcd against the aforesazd Vzce Chancellor were
bupponed by affidavits and pe1 tained to cmruptlon administrative

and ﬁnancml trregularities and oiher misconducts.

v Page 1 0f133
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J.

The allegations as against the delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok

Miﬁ:al Vice Chancellor (abstained from work), Dr. ‘Bhimrao

Ambedl AT U111V6151ty, Agra Wele that:

(i)

(11)

(ii)

(iv)

He appointed more than 100 gue% faculties without 1oll<)wmg

‘the guidelines_as laid down by the UGC. He did not get the

Py

vacancies published, took money from the Ptoiussom and the

election was made by a three membel committee which were

CO .

i

1is own people. The selection was done 1llegdlly and agamst the

. _.)"' T

prowslons of law thereby causing fmanclal loss “to. the

Umvmsﬂy and he did dppomtmcnts whmh were not neccascuy
at all. | |

He further spent more ﬂlan Rs. 2,60,000/- aﬁamst the pnovxsmns
0{! law. to get the university tutes Hand Book pm:nued
‘tl;leteby causing financial lcﬁs)(;} the Umvel sity.
Brof. Ashok Mittal a ted his relatives and near and dual
osnes also even aﬂm@hey had completed the age of 68-70 ycalo
Hurther, retigetsersons were appomted in the Univers ny'
iilegally 3\@ gh 1'emunerat10n' thereby causing financial los§ to
the U crsity. R :
lk‘klouted the gjuxdehnes and protocol set [ouh by ch up -
Public Hedhh and Lpldemlc Dlsease Conhol Act, 2020
1egzudmg Cov1d 19. | | '
He dppmmed his 1elat1ve and near one ' Shri Hari Uownd
Agnwal and stalted thomng money lhxoucvh hun Shu
Agalwfll denmnded 20 percent facility fec, from one of the

Complamdmb namely Dr. Ar un Kumar Dixit, for ch‘dnnff his

'

SRV :
( ;‘ Page 2 of 133
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bills and said that the uomplamant Would not bc, able to work

funhei if he does not pay the aforeszud amount of 20 percent.

(VI) PlOL,f Ashok Mittal is getting the colleges inspected by his own

people lnstead of selecting the persons who were em olled in the

pdnel by the Executive. Councﬂ In lhIs regard, a Charge Sheet

Wd&yf} also 1swcd against the VICG Chancellor, Prof. Ashok

Mnml He ig further Commmmg irregularities in the
appomtments of teacher of the self- imance colleges.’
(vii) SOD/‘IC teachers against Whom FIR has been registered are being
proinoted ?acfaihst rules and tthOh these promoted teachers,

Prof. Ashok M ittal made 1116ga1 zmd uregular appointments and
other i Irre gulanues Y

(viii) He has close connections W1th educatlon maﬁas These colleges
Wm{je under enqumes and ever y tlme 'the e found guilty and

whc},n the Registrar sent the mfom ilg\(g)co the g()vermnem hm

Ughts were sel7ed ’ :
! _ ._..33»

(ix) At ) present, ‘the Vice Chanc Plof Ashok Mlthl I mzs— ‘
appropriating funds to 4 ?“mne of ‘crores of lupees i ﬂlc
affiliation depaltme_i\he has posted his own people in the

atfili dUon depart and mueased the. seats of BPED and

M. LD and otl?b;isubjects 1Hega11y The Vlce Chanceﬂm Prof,

Ashok Mmal has granted afﬁhatlon 10 mdny colleges vmlatmﬂ ,

the Sta'mtes,fand law, causmg fmancnl megulautles and huge

'ﬁnancial losses to the exchequer

) Be&des these on-02.06. 2021 When Dr Bhlmrao Ambedkm
UHIVCI Sity’s review pwceedmgs wele In progress, it was found

th al the Vice Ch ancellm Plof Ashok Mltlal was nol pr Lpamd

Page 3i0f133
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0.

on 1he concerned points. He could not give any satisfactory
answer “to. the questions put 0 him, althou gh it was his duty to
salllsfact01-y’.1‘eljly- to all the questions put to him. Besides this,
he (l.id not g’et‘the audit objections removed. The teachers and
non- teaclnng staff coupled with the clerical staff, who were
'1‘e€1dmg in the University plemlses were using elccmcny
withoul cmy Sep"uale meters, theleby,, auqmg financial loss to

the Um ve1 sity.

(x1) Lases pendlng in the ch'h Court for and against the University,

: WGIG not dealt with- plopelly Students were not given the

degjlueb in time. Officials wele granted unnecessaly overtime
allowances. No roasters were prepared during appomtments.

he Vlce Chancellor Prof /\sl ke

.1ttal lackcd knowledge
‘_m%xdmg the SIT case nor " e: B to know cmythmo clb()l.ll it,
Wlllch 18 mdlcatlve of tl { that lhe V1ce Chcmue lor Prof.
Ashok Mittal was leflyf¥ic and lndlffelent towaldq his dutleq
On thefz basis of the @‘resald complaints the Hon’ blc Chanc cll
constituted thf;g\@esald Inquiry Commlttee to Whom the matter .
was referr @?‘s’tated calher = ' |
As pCl”lLng and following the prmmples of natural JleUCL noﬂces
were 1ssued to Plof Ashok Mlttal lmually, he fallud to appear
before the lnquny Commlttee and sent adjom nment appllgatlon on
medical grounds. | E
After ciletailed discﬁ_ssions and _Vpél“LlSlllg;all tlm papers on 1'eéol'cl,
the lnjqui_ry‘,,Coinmitt‘ee prepared ‘a Charge Sheef against Prof.

Ashokﬁ\/littal. The Ch_argd Sheet is‘bjeiﬁg reproduced as follows:
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T 2 T Ud G
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28.01.2019 (HTS atzmﬁﬁ’/zas TRIT 04/240, 04/245 TTEA
04/248, 04/252 @ @?Mz@s 04/270, 04/271, 04/273 GUIBK]
04/290, 04/29242%7300 04/303, 03/040 ST 03/045, 03/051
T 03/105 2, 21/2380, mmuamﬁcﬁa?ﬁ;rﬁﬁ&mmox

386, 90/8858, 90/8858, 90/8859, 90/8867, feouft o
W‘T@ﬂﬁm 28.05. 7019/29 05.2019/13.06. 2019 T GE!
68/5515, FwEATAA sReT fatier 18.01.2019 SHITST TEAT 68/5516
[GUIBK 68/5520 copy of persbnal p‘romotion 68/5524, €10 é’a?'ﬁ'
SN § waer fad ﬁ{-‘ﬂ'%ﬂ 21.01. 2019 75/7325 9 75/7326
A 7517328, ErﬂTﬂTa?m@Eﬁ 14 062019 a?rxr%rmfcr 75/7329,
chc«wmq 3 TR EﬁTEF%f\Eiﬁf 75/7331, 75/7333, €10 STEER T
%mﬁmwﬁrﬂﬁm 13.08. 2009 Eﬁw 64/4130 mﬁw
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14.06.2010, 64/4138, 64/4139, 64/4265 T Wﬁﬂ e iR
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7. 1“11.@3 Charge Sheet was sent to the Hon’ble Chancellor for approval

whfich was approved by the Hon’ble Chancellor through letter no.

F-5637/03-GS0-vii dated 31.08.2021 (Ampexure- A-2/2). The

4/1 to A-4/9.

The approved Charge Sheet was served on the delinquent officer

(€]

who denied the charges, and submitted his written statement along
with list of witnesses and evidences which is paper no. 103/9018-

9039 (Annexure- A-5/1 to A-5/38) annex this report.

9. In the written reply to Charge No. 1, t@)qlélinquent officer, Prof.

Ashok Mittal admitted that during?.s‘ténure some guest faculties
were engaged by him. He »f@'ther stated that none of these
engagements were made st the regular/permanent vacancies,

and that the guidelig& MUGC dated 28" January, 2019, copy of

which was Suppli@b&’t) him along with the charge sheet as paper no.

04/236 (Ammme— B-8/1) are not bound upon the University,

because it has neither been accepted by the Government nor

adopted by the University yet (o the best of his knowledge.
Furthermore, guest faculties are not appointed against the
permanent vacancies. He has also stated that it was incorrect to say
that a common committee was constituted for selection of such
engagements, as a matter of fact, the aforesaid committee

comprising of three experienced teachers was constituted only for
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!thq purpose to obtain and examine the genuineness of mquucments

'uest faculties, to maintain fairness and unpartmh(y at the

3quest of the Registrar. The aforesaid committee examined the

genumeness and requirement of the guest faculties as well as the

eli ribilit}/ of the faculty 1ecommended by the Heads of

el?aumentb Thueaﬂer such encraoemenls ‘were made on - the

ommendation of the commlttee He has further stated that the -

acﬂ Of lodﬂm0 HR aocunst one of membels of the aforesaid

comm]ttee was never brought to his notice. His reply further states

1hat 1t"was evident from the pelusal of the said FIR (paper no.
21/2381 21/7386 Anmmma—ﬂ 19/1 to B- 19’/8) that it was lodged

:on‘ 04 09 2018 against celtam'per ons mcludmg two - of his

"»iﬁ‘;.‘«pledeussoxs Le. two Vice Ch hancellors. It was Iodged more than
 ;.“ 0117} and a half year prior to his taking 3 charae as Vice
  27‘ ‘%Ch'ancellm He has also specified that “’g\eCe’ pendency of an FIR
. ‘ioci’i, * k‘not dlsquahfy any person to be,égﬁunbm of the Committee
hlll oonwct]on or sentence is passéd against him by the court of
competent Jjurisdiction and Q?f'e beqt of the ls.nowledge of the
“delinquent officer, none ¢ aforesaid committee members have

been convicted or gl‘{gﬁced It is also incorrect to say that no

demand was madd by the Head of the Departmentq and the

Justification of such 1equuements was not examined. All the guest

faculties were eng gaged followmg the plocedums as adopied by his

pmdeccamx in officer for the last several years who neither got

pubhbhed any adver llsemem nor called for any expert opinion for

lhc; engagement of guest faculties in the past. Nothmg new was

done by him except to constitute a comlmttee for this purpose with

- _ / Page 17 0f 133




‘a ~viéw ‘to assess the genuineness of the requirements and
5611g1b11111e:> of the teachers pr oposed to be engaged for maintaining
, ‘qmpcutlahty He has further specnfled that more than 90 percent
guesd facu ties were engaged/continued: on lhe 1econnnumatmn«,‘

made by the committee. Therefore, no question for any illeg gality

» : anse? ‘The complaints made by Shn Rahul Solanki, Shri Saurabh
E ';"",byliluld(la Advocate and Dr. Arun Kumcu Dixitare mala fide and have
j?beénﬁf made with ulterior motives. The complamants may be put to
smct; proofs of the allegations made agamst the delinquent officer.
| I Tc Iul thu stated that he commﬂted no 1Hegahty which falls within
the pumew ot misconduct 111 any mauel Whatsoevm and hence
"’ Charwe No. 1 has no legs to stand forwant of evidence.
As 1egalds Charge No 2, the dehnquent of] has admitted that
& LIb]lbh@d durmg his

the Stamtes/Hmd Book was 001 updated
|
tenure but the remaining allegahoqg\@ve been demed No double

r
1ayment was made and no finz 1 irregularity was committed

de no financial loss was e to the Umvelsny Fur ther, he has
said that from the pem 214} note- sheet d'tted 10.09. 2()20 marked -
as paper no. 90/8895%&1 90/8892 (Annexure— B-33/9 to B-33/10),
Dr. Harish C a'n}l-h Deputy chlstrar (Retncd} was enﬂaged by

his )1educe%01 as OSD f01 06 months onan hon(n arium of 35000/-

‘1361‘ month for updating the Statu.tes/1~1and Book of the University
- as well as other work of official c‘o_rféspondenéés_Wh_ich was made

eiiochw from 25.05.2018. D1 }Ha‘ri.sh Clﬂndrd updated the
| Std[lltbb/]"ldnd Book upto the year 2019 but he did not. hand it over

to thu University demandmg payments The Lelevam paxt 01 paper

i
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nos. 90/8891 and 90/8892 (Amnexure- B-33/9 to B-33/10) runs as

follows:
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4 hus Dr. Harish Chandra was neither engaged nor any payment .
,:st made to him during the tenure of the delmquem officer and the
th e% member committee constituted in pursuance to the resolution
":v"yrpassed by the Exccutlve Councll in its meetmg held on 01.10. ’70 19

' 1“1ecommended 101 m'Lklng suitable p'lyment to Dr. Harish Chandra.

' "]This C,omm_ittee was constituted in the year 2019 before. the:
}fd.ahnquent oiflcel took charge as Vice Chancellor of the

: University The complamt m%du by D1 Arun Kumar Dixit is mala

fide! with ulterior motives. No- ev1dencc regarding financial loss

caused to the Unwmsﬂy by. the delinquent ofhce1 has been

p10v1ded to hlm hence the chm ges a,le m@nte n spcu ﬁc, and
Erroneous. R ,j CE:}

In 1’ep1y to the Chal ge No. 3 the iquént officer admitied that -

n thm cheuge thlee chmges.‘lgw been consolidated in one Vviz.
fnbt relating.to “appoin it of Shrl NeelaJ Goyal, scwnd
replacing the Advo e omg panvx of Shu Neeraj Goyal’s case
and third, relat the appomhnents of favouute and close
relatives even}x\tel their 1eU1ements ag'unst rules and at high
honoxauum causmg hmncnl 10ss 10 the Umvelslty -As far as
Neeraj Goyal s matter was concemed the decision of appomtment
of Neeraj Goyal was mken by the Executwe Council in its meeting
held on 25 11, ’)01’7 The matter was furthe1 dlbcu%ed in the
subsequent meetings of the E)\ccutwe Council held on 31.07.2019
and 01.10. ”019 and it-was’ agam 1esolved that appomtment be
oﬂued to Shm Neera] Goyal as Computer Opemtox on conuact
| q/" ' C | | o | Page"ﬂoflSS
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basu under the self-financed scheme in view of his eligibility. In
"ﬂllS Way, the decision for his appointment was not taken duri mg the
’{tcf;:nure O‘.'f thg delinquent officer, but since his appomtment letter
lxxi/aSHcv)t issued for a long period, Neeraj Goyal filed writ-A no.
91’995/2020 against the University before theHon’bIe High Court
L ‘which on 20.01.2021 Shri Gagan Mehta, Counsel for the

‘ Umvemty sought ten days time to seek instructions in the matter
‘  ‘4§ to why the resolution of the Executive Council had not yet been
7",11.;nplememed by the competent officer of the University. Hence,

: ujndel these circumstances, appointment letter was issued to Neeraj

el
Goyal in pursuance to the resolution of the Executive Council

b "dated. 25.11.2017 and to avoid any contempt proceeding before the
’Hon ble High Court. Copies of the mmu@of the meeting of the
]*]‘xccutwe Council held on 25.].@7 and orders dated
‘ 20 01.2021, 05.02.2021 and 1 Qé:& passed by the Hon’ble
| I%lgh Court have been enggééd with Written Statement as

Afnnexure?A to D. 0
As regarding rep i@ nt of Shrt Gagan Mehta Advocate is
du

concerned, he w icting the case of Shri Neeraj Goyal who
filed writ- Aq@\ 995/2020 against the Umvelsny i which on
20.01.2021 Shri Mehta prayed for ten days time to seek
instructions in the matter as to why the resolution of the Executive
Council had not yet been implemented by the University,
whereupon the High Court was pleased to grant ten days time
fixing 05.02.2021 as fresh, but Shri Mehta did not communicate
‘cﬁjlything about the said order to the delinquent officer. On the next

day i.e. 05.02.2021, Shri Mehta prayed for further time and the

‘;J(W@\@EO gret ) |
WWW &
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CQL“:H“t‘granted a week’s time fixing the matter on 19.02.2021 as

C“Th but again Shri Mehta did not communicate any order to the
:d'eh;ii’iq‘uen’t-foicer. Hence, he was replaced by Shri Vivek Rai

N
Advocate. It is incorrect to say that Shri Mehta was removed from

the| panel, because he is still on the panel of the University. It is

nmpfr‘ect to say that undue benefit was given to Neeraj Goyal.
Besides, the nomination of Shri Vivek Rai Advocate as panel

‘ f‘u ‘lay\%yelj‘of the University has also been approved by the Executive
»,::_{VC’(\)Zjuncil in its meeting dated 22.10.2020 which is paper no.

35/3457 (Annexure- B-22/5). There is no evidence to prove that

© Mi. Vivek Rai was intimate or favorite of the delinquent officer.
= Thus, this charge too is in definite. He has further stated that no
. “fresh appointments were made by him durin @tenure, as a matter
Gt | | -
" of fact, he only hired/engaged certain ¢€fr€d person for a short
| I
- period on fixed remuneration/hor (1%&1 um lesser than their last
: N

drawn salary in view of the re u@t made to him by the concerned
S TR ) N

( .

‘ ofﬁcers to cope with the h

orkload. He has further denied of
| [2"’1‘1‘21“\fi1‘1g‘caused any ﬁ& Wial loss to the University. Further his
‘ written reply statesbﬁ’fm he never engaged any of his mtimates or
_f‘_’relativés after 'a&ﬁ\ming the age of 68-70 years or official age of

fksu_peraﬁnuation on payment  of excessive
i  ;"renmncrdtiQn/honorarium. However, experienced persons were
éllgaged for short terms to maintain smooth functioning as per the
1;61L]L1,i1'elllellts and demands. All matters of such short term
vcﬂga‘gements have been duly approved by the Executive Council.
Nb evidence has been provided to him about the close relationship

with such engaged persons. He has also mentioned that this

s Page 22 of 133

&

-




i
!

2l

)

i1

b

i

|

o

«‘practice of engagement of retired persons has been going on sinc

long and adopted even by his predecessor in office.

i
(
|

‘In Charge No. 04, Prof. Ashok Mittal while denying the charge he
stated that he quarantined himself from 26.03.2021 to 11.04.202

' 101 14 days when he was tested corona positive and he made 4

e fOL ts to follow the directions issued by the government from tin

to ume to avoid the spreading of the pandemic, and it was only du

“to his efforts due to which temporary vaccination camp was starte

g“i_n’JP Auditorium on 11.04.2021 where several University teache

‘and staff were vaccinated; and now it has been converted 1nto

© permanent vaccination center. No such violation/ breach of Covi

19 protocols ever took place to the best of his knowledge. T

- any trial, in regar

~Arun Kumar

" query was ever made [J

alleged breach

specific incident or occurrence, specifyy
Covid-19 Protocol, has been disclg@@elt’in the charge. All t

allegations made in this regard}e Vexatious, frivolous and se

concdcted, and none of th as any legs to gsmnd, neither a
1m by the Police nor did he ever 2
‘i.&\ ¢ allegations levied against him by Dr.

@Fhu copies of documentary evidence, provic

“to him, n 1‘5}3%1{1 to the above charge, have no evidentiary value

 establish the said charge. The complaints, made by S/Sri Ral

G

%@MLW %WW Sofo |

Solanki, Saurabh Shukla, Advocate and Dr. Arun Kumar Dixit,
not bona fide and have been made against him with ulter
‘motives. The complamants may kindly be asked to put strict pr

of their allegations, made against him.

T n reply to the Charge No. 5, the delinquent officer has specifici

‘denied this charge with the submission that Sri Hari Gov

Page 23 of




Agérwal is neither his relative nor he has any type of intimacy with
’hinfl. As a matter bf fact, the engagement of Sri Hari Govind
Agﬁarwal is a result of the requirement, made from the Legal
De&aartment of the University praying for nominating a fulltime
Acg.V'ocate, in view of working load and sanctity of complicated
litijgations, a copy whereof has been provided to him along with the

charge-sheet as evidence, proposed to be considered in support of

clwg.rge, marked as paper no. 6/343 (Annexure- B-14/1).
C(j)nsequently, Sri Hari Govind Agarwal was engaged for Rs.
30,000/- per month as remuneration on contractual basis only for a
short period of six months with further extension of the same
period, which has been duly approved by the Executive Council in
its meeting. It is evident from the per " affidavit of Sri Hari
Gjovind and his Registration Certifi c@, issued by the Bar Council
of U.P. as an Advocate that;ﬁ?’holds the eligibility for being
eﬁgaged as Legal AdvisopAd&refore, it is absolutely incorrect that
he was engaged Withqz?%?ny just reason and eligibility as Legal
Advisor. It is als }ginent to specify that this practice has been
going on si ‘t%lg and adopted by his Predecessors-in office,
therefore, m‘ixthe allegations made in this regard are false and
baseless and none of them have any legs to stand.

The complaints, made by S/Sri Rahul Solanki, Saurabh Shukla.
Advocate and Dr. Arun Kumar Dixit, are not bona fide and have
been made against him with ulterior motives. The complainants
Ihay kindly be asked to put strict proof of their allegations, made

against him.

!,\/ Page 24 of 13!




ly to 'Chgi*ge:No. 6, the delinquent officer did not admit this
éfci,fiC’aily denied the charge with the submission that

111@1"0f té:achers for inspection, approved by the Executive

1S iwﬁ:existence at present; therefore, upon receipt of

om the 'fC*Olleges for mspections, it was scrutihized by the

iliz 10'13_;;D(?pdl;tnie‘n:t and when everythingwa.sb found to be in
then 1‘¢§cmﬁmendaﬁon was made for nomination of Panel,
”after,_S‘Liiifta’blevand experienced teachers were nominated for
,k1/"t,1§L>ii;1iaovse;_,',1ty:’is ;‘ébéolutely iﬁcon‘ect to allege that the Panels for
I;;spéq'tibli‘ of Q(‘)lill‘éges'vvel'e constituted arbitrarily»by him, without
going ﬂlrough the matter seriously,vas” per his own whims and
ishes. All of such matters related to his tenure, were placed before
he E‘Xédl}fi ,e;;‘CQL}ﬁdLi111‘i“[snileetingsj, which gffeRe ar»r’;ii_l»aﬁ‘on and
discuysks.ion‘ hafd duly app\i"_cived'all'of such a@;.cone by him. In the
same way, 115 is also incorrect to\ cl’ij\@o tilat irregularities were
Qo_mmittcd 01ii his part, while mgl¥g® appointment of teache:s of
“«Sel‘f-‘FinanCe‘cflz COlléges,‘ becQ%'such-"appoihtmehts' are made on
h@ 1‘ecommehdations of ﬂé Selection Connhittee._ However, no
,v,f‘specific incident or a\&?ﬂ*egﬁulaﬂty cdmmitted by him has been
pecif‘ied n the ch”d}ge.jTherefore, a]l,.l the alljegati,ons made in this
= "il‘egard are vexatious, frivolous and seif—cohc_octe’d, and none of
| j@m have any legs to stand. It is also pertinmﬁto specify that this
practice has been going on since long a'j]d'was_. adopted by his
,Predecessors_;‘in-Ofﬁcc too. It is still go:i_hg' on and 'thé present
- acting Vice :Chancevﬂor has also been following the same even
tdd.ay. If thi§ pra‘ctice,fallsb‘within the l‘p’u_rview of "irregularity" it

should have been checked out forthwith, but no steps were either

R . Page 25 0f 133

. -~
TN




taken in the past or being taken presently, in this regard to the best
of his knowledge. Only a list of Panel nominated for making

nspections (papers no. 30/2945 to 30/2964, Annexure- B-21/1 to

B-21/2), has been provided to him as documentary evidence in
support of the above charge, but it does never indicate as to what
i.f‘regularity was committed by him by selecting these teachers in
the panel, constituted for inspection of colleges or appointment of
the teachers in self-financed colleges. Therefore, all the allegations
njlade in this regard are false and baseless and none of them has any
légs to stand.

The complaints, made by Sri Rahul Solanki, Saurabh Shukla,
Adv'oca,te and Dr. Arun Kumar Dixit, are not bona fide and have
been made against him with ulterior t@ives. The complainants
1iialy kindly be asked to put strict gfopf of their allegations, made
wambt him. “’i\ ’

Jn reply to Charge No. 7 @k!clmquem officer has not admitted
this char ge and has s cally denied it with the submission that
no promotion of %@ acher was made by him, during his tenure.
" Only a copy> IR lodged against certain persons (papers no,

21/2380 iol\21/2387 Annexure- B-19/1 to B-19/8), has been

provided to him, as documentary evidence in support of the above

charge, but it does not indicate any teacher, who is named in FIR
and was promoted by him during his tenure, even after pendency
of FIR. In this way, this charge is indefinite and in specific. It is
further stated that all the allegations made in this regard are false
and baseless and none of them has any legs to stand. The

complaints, made by Sri Rahul Solanki and Dr. Arun Kumar Dixit,
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are not bona fide and have been made against him with ulterior
- motives. The complainants may kindly be asked to put strict proof
- of their allegations, made against him.

20, Jn reply to Charge No. &, the delinquent officer has not admitted

this charge and has specifically denied it with the submission that

|

he is 'not acquainted with any person, who is alleged to be an

f ‘- . - !

'leducation mafia". It is totally false to allege that he has close
|

*.1elations or intimacy with any person or persons, who are

: ’,,’,jédutcvation mafias" and he has ceased the powers of the Officer,
V;vhé submitted report against them to the Government upon being

; ‘t‘found them guilty of charges in the inquiry reports. As a matter o
fact, he has submitted the inquiry reports of the erring Colleges i
the- Government without any undue d and he never ceasec

- powers of any officer for the reaso@ submitting such mquir

S

R rl’:"éports to the Government, dur}r?‘h's tenure. No specification i1
|
}

regard to the alleged "edy @@on mafia" or the Officer, whos

ﬁ)OWers is said to have ceased by him, has been made in thi
"bh&l‘g@. Therefore,‘a\@uch allegations are false and baseless, and
none of them 11213 1y iota of evidence for its establishment. Copie
of certain do&}nents (papers no, 1 0/858 to 10/861, Annexure- B

_“,]{_ﬁ/"ii to B-16/4), have been provided to him, as documentar

'b}'éyidénce in support of the above charge, but no clear indicatio
reflects thereto or establishes his close relations or intimacy wit
v;any person or persons, who are as "education mafias". In this way
thls charge 1s indefinite and in specific. It is further stated that a
‘fthe‘ allegations made in this regard are false and baseless; and nor

‘of them has any legs to stand.

: % . f’)V . / Page27 of 4:
5 < '/ N

W N
(,w%@m ) e

S S .
EHET H ATy, Solo |




‘The complaints, made by Sri Rahul Solanki and Dr. Arun Kumar
. Dixit, are not bona fide and have been made against me with
ujlter‘ior motives. The complainants may kindly be asked to put
Sﬁict proof of their allegations, made against him.
tharge No. 9 is not admitted and has specifically denied with the
o sﬁbmission that it is absolutely incorrect, false and baseless to

| agllege that scams for crores were committed in the Affiliation
E;ieparﬁnent, under his directions by enhancing the seats of B.Ed.,

Il

M.Ed. and other subjects, in contravention to rules/regulations. 1t

- Uligevident from the perusal of copies of documents, provided to him

o eﬂong with the charge-sheet, marked as 52/3659 to 52/3674
- »‘ (Annexure- B-26/1 to B-26/2) and 11/862 to 11/906 (Annexure-

B-17/1 to B-17/44), that certain numbel@\seats was approved
tihe said Colleges by NCTE for adm@)'on in the courses of B.P.Ed
aind M.Ed., but admissions WE@ ipermitted on all the approved

' seats for insufficient nu }%fs of approved teachers in these

colleges; but when Q@ﬁ ient number of teachers were gol

approved by the f{)@ges, then permission was granted to these

~Colleges for a %S‘sion on remaining allotted seats. It is pertinen’

N to state hefB}i]ﬂ’[ only NCTE is competent to allot/approve seats
“the respective colleges for admission in the courses of B.P. Ed anc
M.Ed and the Vice Chancellor’s role is limited, to merely maintait

| ~teachers and students' ratio. Since, in some colleges, the number o
-approved teachers was less than the approved seats, therefore 1

| 'View of the number of approved teachers, permission was grante
':;for'adm'issions on limited seats. Later on, when the colleges gc

‘approval of more teachers, then admissions were allowe

& M
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accordingly. Therefore, he enhanced no seats for BP Ed and M.
Ed for %everai cdl’leges and provided affiliation in contravention to
Govel‘llfxnent Orders, as alleged. He granted no affiliation to ‘any
new college during his tenure, howevér, permission was accorded
for onejor two subjects to certain Government and aided colleges,
matters Whereof were pending since long, prior to his taking over
charge las Vice Chancellor. It is also baseless and false to allege
that he| committed any irregularjties in regard to the electricity

connections, because only fixed charges were realized from the

teaching and - non-teaching staff, residing in the official

acc01m]:§10dati0118, when he took over cliarge.. However, he tried his
best to install prepaid electric .meters in the official
accommodations and correspondence was ¢ to the Torrent
Power by issuing several 1etters,d'u1“i11g51:§§t)teﬁ.‘ui‘é for installation
of prep,:aid electric meters. In th:is'»y’g\ ¢ made a lot of efforts to
mitigaté the financial loss to & University, being caused on
account{ of recovery of ﬁxe@‘ctxieiw chérges 'ﬁ'Qm the residents
of official accommo'da@;s. Copies of documents marked as
papers no. 53/3675 t 3685 (Annexure- B-28/1 to B-28/11) and
papers no.19/ 169% to 19/2007 (Annexure- B-18/1 to B-18/12)

prov}ideyd to hini, ‘a'skeviﬁdence propos'ed to be conﬁdered n support
of the charge-sheet, clearly shows as to how :many efforts were
made by lﬁm to avoid _ongoing financial ‘_l‘QSS to_thd University,
during his tenure. It is further stated that no 1atch'es:‘vve_re cdnuﬁi;tted-
by him in realization of arrears due upon the canteens of Khandari
and Paﬂiwal Campus. Furthermore, to say that neither any alleged

breach of provisions of Financial Hand Book was ever committed
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‘support the above charges; they

by him énor any alleged gross ﬁnanéial loss was caused to the
Universijty by any of his acts, in any manner whatsoever. As a
matter o:f fact, no such act was ever done by him during his tenure.
No 'speciifie’d particulars in support of such allegations have been
disclose‘ain the charge. Therefore, all of ,suc‘h aliegations are false
and bas{aless, and no.né of them has any iota of evidence for its
establish}’ment. In this way, this charge is indefinite and in Specific.
|
It 1s ‘furt:he_r submitted that all the allegations made in this regard
| C
are falsei and baseless; and none of them has any legs to stand. The
complainilts,'mad,e by Sri Rahul Solanki, Saurabh Shukla Advocate
and Dr. ‘;Amn Kumar Dixit, are not bona fide and have been made
against him with ulterior motives. The complainants may kindly be
asked to put strict proof of their allegations, ma @ainst him. No
copies oé‘f complaints or statements of Sr'i“ I@jjendra Singh, S,
Rajni Ya;ldav, ;illd Ms. Megha Bansal 1’13\ een provided to him,

while their names-have been menijefted in the Charge-Sheet to

> he is not in a position to put

his defence version, in regayﬁ& these witnesses.

Charge No. _l_O is not ads%éd by him ‘and has Sgascii?ically deni@d
with the submissidﬁ‘l’nat no Charteré.d‘"AccOuntaht was 1’:eplaCc—:d
with any new one by him, during his tenure, as alleged. It 1s also
incorrect to allegevthat the University had to pay Rs.72,00,000/- as
penalty. Upoh going through the 1natféf, it came to his notice that
the University has challenged the order of impoéingpenalty before
the Ap'piellate Authority which 1s still 1:5611ding for disposal. The
circumsfanoes, under which Sri. Vivek Rai Advocate was

nominated, has already been described in reply to Charge no. 03,
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therefore, it needs no repetition. The complaint, made by Sti Rahul
Solanki is not bona fide and has been made against him with
ulterior motives. The complainant may kindly be asked to put strict
proof of his alleg'mons rmde against hlm

Charge No 11 is not ddmltted by him and has been <;p601ilcally :

denied with the. submission that no payment of Advocates or other
Omcem/Oiﬁlcmlq was stayed either by him or any of his allege ed
intimate persons. However, the matter of payment 1elated to the
bills of 'learm’ad Advocates was placed by him before the Executive
Council in 1ts meeting dated 22.10.2020, wh1ch discussed- 1t,
length and Lesolved that the bills, bubmltted by the learned
Advocates, Shall be conmdeled for pftymem after exammatmn
thereof. Thmcfme in pmsu’mce to the. fmbove reso],@@n/ decision
of Executival Louncﬂ, a three members' Corm TtHee, consisting of
Sri S.D. Pa]éiwal, ‘Retired. HJS (Chair ”Q), Sri S.K.v Bajpayee,
Chartered A%:C_otlljtall'f ’(Member) an s@sjstam “Reg!istx‘ztl‘ (Legal),
by post (men?nber) was consﬁtme .O7.2_021I for%xaminin g the .
bills, qubmitied by the learng@\vocates; It has come to his notice
that the said Commiitee 11'5?“11bmllted its repmt after examination
f the bills, bubmltte’dlby the learned Advomtes which may be
summoned from the office of the Ulll,VClSlty for his defence
version. Nob -eVidence proposed to be consic"lered in regard to the
above charge for- othel officers/officials, lns been made available
to him, except the Complamt made by Dr Sr1 Axun Kumal Dixit,
which is not bona fide and has been 1mde agamst him with ulterior,

motives. The comphmant may kindly be asked to-put strict prooi

of his aﬂegaﬂons made against him. Tlnt on the basis of the
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subﬂnssmns made in the p1ecedmo paragraphs it is crystal clear
that he is not guﬂty of any of the charges levied upon him, hence,
he prayed to exonerate him-of the charges levied upon him. That
he also requested to provide him W.ith' an opportunity of cross-
examination to each and every Witness,' proposed and examined in
support of the’charge—sheet against him and to hear him in person,
permitting hi’m to 13rdclLlce his defence evidence.

In the end, he has submitted that he may be exonerated against the

charges %eviédhpon him. The delinquent officer has also given a
list of sgaven kwitnesses which he proposed to examine as his
Wlhl@b%t‘,S He further requested that he may also be permitted to
give his own bt'nemenl on oath and be permltted to CTO$S examine

all the Wl tnesses p1oduced against him. The deli nt officer was
gianted penmsswn to cross examine each dng every witness who
appealed ag:,amst him. Further, he wa ..Q?Mded COpleS of each and
every papels which was: 1ehed 6%73 by the commn‘aee or any
wilness. i BRI AN ?" o |

The delmq uent olflcer L&\hed many papeis in his dufeuca many

times. S{?\

A very stlange 5& pccuhar thing ° Wthh was notlced in ﬂns

particular inquiry by the Committee was that When the pr oceedm as
of the committee were held at Dr. APJ Abdul Kalam Technical
University, '_Luckimw.The relevant ddcumehts- and papers asked
for, by the committee Wéré not 1-béi11g' pfodulcved,v and non-
cwailabillity of certain Executive Council Meeting’s minutes was
wpmted but tw1ce When the commlttee held its sitting at Dr.

Bhimrao Ambedk’lr University, Aga qmte a lot of papels kept
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pouring in, some by the University, some by the witness and some
original |papers, to the utter surprise of the committee, by the

delinquent officer himself. The Inquiry: Committee noticed that

practically nothing was in order in the Agra University and faced

1 lot of difficulty in conducting this inquiry. In as much as on two

days some mobs came till the door of lhe room where the inquiry
was bemg conducted, which was later on taking care of.

28, In this c;1se, 06 witnesses namely, AW-1 Dr. Arun Kumar Dixit
Advoca’t%a, AW-2 Shri Rahul Solanki (he also submitted a pen

drive, Miaterial Exhibit-1, containing some audio clipping, before

* : the lnquiiry‘Committee, copy of which was given to the delinquent
| officer), AW-3 Shri Hari Govind Agarwal, AW-4 Shri Rajendra
Singh, AW—S ’1\/[8.,‘» Méglla. Bansal and AW-6 Sh @\n ani Kumar
Mishra were ploduced to prove charges a@/m t the delinquent

officer. CW—., Shr1 Radhika Prasii. adav, CW-2, Suraj

Manchanda and AW-6, Shri Anjani J&gMar Mishra was summoned

efence, the delinquent officer

ingh, DW-2 Shri Arun Kumar

by the Committee. '[il support of
examined DW I Smt. M‘{N}
Singh, DW-3 Shri. Ajag Kumar Gautam, DW-4 Shri Anoop

Kumar, DW-5 Shri~Kailash Bind, DW-6 Shri Sanjeev Kumar
Singh, who are all‘employ‘ees of the Un.ivefrsity. Shri Hari Mohan
was examined as DW-7 by the delinquent officer. He is working

as HEngineer in the University. DW-8 was the delinquent officer

himself Prof. Ashok Mittal. Dr. Arun Kumclr Dixit Advocate and

Shri Rahj_ul Solanki were re-cross examined by the delinquent

officer on his request. The Inquiry Committee recalled and
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reexamined AW-3 Hari Govind Agarwal, DW-5 Kailash Bind,
DW-4 Anio,,o’p Kumar, DW-3 Ajay Kumar Gautam.

Finally, the oral and the documentary evidences were concluded

by both the pames

The duhntquem officer, Plot Ashok Mittal informed the committee
n writing » that he did not wish to adduce any or al ftrounwntg which

is annexed as Annexure- B-43 to this report. Hence, the evidence

was dechled dsalto be concluded.
The descuphon of any documents or evidence filed by any witness
find place n the mder sheet of that date and just for the sake of
l"epetltlol!l it 18 belnG ‘mentioned that Coples of each and € vely
evidence mcludmg pen drive were provzded to the delinquent
officer and he was given much more than- suff@ﬂt opp01 tunities
to meet l)ut the charges levied agamst him(Hg"was also permitted

to wwtch the mmmes of the Executive cxl meehwT whmh were

displaye d by the lnquny Comm in his presence to watch the

video p}cpﬂled of the meeu ‘?‘ o &
The douamemary evid ;,Ev}umsnsts of all the papers mentioned

in the Chfu ne Shee%%"lf besides n mdudes other papers filed
by the dehnqué?& officer and the wzmcgsm And also those
which werc pmp«)sely withheld by ﬂne Umversﬁy and later

were compelled to pn‘oduce them beifme the committee. It is
muworthy th% some umgmal papers were p]‘@dmed by the
deﬁmqwem wﬁhcer mmseM from hlS office dmweﬂ which aspew

shall b;e discussed Mter.
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33, Asfar as the oral evidence is concerned, we would like to discuss

and 1ep1‘odure the gist of the statements of all the witnesses

cxdmmed during the course of the inquiry.

(a) Wiméss AW-1, Shri Arun Kumar Dixit while supporting his

pphmt}on and affidavit has stated on oath (Annexure- A-7/1

to A-V/M) that: _

(i) 103 guest faculties were appointed by the delinquent
officer which appointment was against the provisions of
law. There were many appointees who were not fulfilling

i
1e- basic qualifications, the basic qualifications of the

[sull

andidates were not even examined and the commitiee

He)

comprising of Shri Anil Verma, Prof. P.K. Smgh and Prof.
Manu Pratap Smgh itself was illegal as th @gpomtmult of

afmesald three members was illegal. proceeding u/s

68 Universities Act are pendu i st Shri Anil Verma
and the State has also filed ca

J A

ascs against him. Whu@f Manu Pratap Singh was

appointed he was megel» M.Sc. He has done his doctorate

corruption and criminal

i Physics 'w he is appointed in the Lom)utel
y § pp |

Department .« P.K. Slngh was appomted on the basis

of forged papers and he is also not deputed in the

department in which he has done his PhD, besides he was

not appointed against any vacancy. He has further stated

o that the delinquent officer did not obtain the approval of

the Chancellor as envisaged u/s 50(4) of the Universities
Act. Further one person in the name of three persons

submitted the quotations which were addressed to the
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Registrar, the envelopes were addressed to the Assistant

Registrar, © Registrar Office. The alji'eged firm  who

ompleted the job, requested payment to be made to his

[on]

ister concern and payment was  wrongly made. The

)epu‘ty Registrar was appointed on a payment of Rs.

et

5,000 per month but he was overpaid and an extra amount

LI

of Rs‘..S0,000 was paid to him causing financial irregularity
and financial loss to the University. He has also stated that

1'?1}6 delihquent officer did not follow any procedure or rules

i’n the appointment of his near one namely Neeraj Goyal

c'md also mislead the court. The erring officer tried to
z‘ippointheeraj Goyal directly . throu§h the Executive
Council on which the Registrar fobjected@ge to which the
éppointment letter was got vissille'dé:}zm; unaﬁthon‘zed‘

person. Prof. Mittal also appointgithis near and dear ones

z?ll'_though,they had crossed the@e of appointment amongst
these are Shri Hari Govi garwal, Shri Harish Chandra,

-Shri Paliwal, Shri @ui Mishra, Shri Praveen Agarwal,

Shri Chandra %ekhar Ashthana, Shri Pramod Kumar
Sharma,Skxﬁé,ilandra Veer, Shri Shailendra Jauhari and
Shri Anoop Kumar Srivastava. '

Regard'i,ng the Covid-19 protocol this witness has stated

~ that.the delinquent officer’vi_‘olated. the Covid-19 protocol

and guidelines due to which an applicat:i_on was sent to the
Chief Minister which was sent for 'ihquiry to the S.O. Hari
Parvat and the report was found correct on which the SSP
sent a report to the Government.- The delinquent officer
, Page 36 of 133
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himself tested corona positive but he did not ‘isolate

himself and was responsible for spreading this disease due

tolwhich most probably some staff members also died.
(iir)Jtjis further stated that Shri Hari Govind Agarwal who is

not an Advocate, he is appointed as Legal Advisor, who

insta’nﬂy started extracting money. Bills amounting (o
about 12 lacs of this witness were pendmg payment since
m:any years but when Shri Hari Govind Agarwal was
contacted he demanded 20 percent commission, which

!

was refused at which Shri Hari Govind said tiut this

Wlmebs would not be able to work further. Tht: witness

Compldmed about all these matters to all the high ups but

no action was taken. Shri Hari Govmd A@Jaﬁ also asked
th1s witness to ‘deal’ in execuuon n&)@ but when this

w1tness refused, a vakalatnama (s close /’\dvocate was
hled in the matter and de almQ'é?es done, although, the case
WdS initially being com sed on Rs. 1,58,000 but lat

on the Uanlelty h@% pay lacs of rupees due to which
initially the bapkyaccount of the University was attached
and the Utmk\psﬂy had to unnecessary suffer financially.

All these facts were brought to the notice of the Regisirar

and Lhe Vice Chancellor. The delinquent officer and Shri

Hari Uovmd Agarwal colluded and wanted to return the

fees, when the opinion of this witness was sought, he gave
the opinion that fee could not be returned. After that this
witness could not find out whether the fees was returned

] or not.
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(iv) The wnness further stated that the delmquem officer often
used unparliamentarily and insulting language against the
Hinduism which can be seen jn‘-the.recordmg of the
minutes of the Executive Councxl AS 500N as me Mittal
took - charge, he- started casteism m the affiliation
department and ch’mged all the staff which did not belong
to} his caste. He further gave the addmonal charge of

.edmal and Aymveda to his hvome Mr. Naveen

garwal. Mr. Arvind Gupta who was already working,

was given the additional charge of Agra, even otherwise in

othel depmtmenis officials of hlS own caste were posted.
Thls witness has further stated that due to the neghgence '
of Shm AX. Singh, Finance. Ofﬁa AN Dr. Bhimrao
Ambedkar University, Aga the Unj ty has to sui{el a
financial loss of 74 lacs. In “1}1{3@& some CA was
appointed to conduct the ca 'g’ho did not appear on: dates

dqe to which the Umv@ suffer ed huge fnmncmi los

and penalty was alsoWmposed on the Univer sity.

(vi) This witness 1} rther stated that the Ambedkar Chair,

which wa lished in the University, was closed since

many years, but Shri Arvind Mishra got pas'séd bills to the
tune of 13 lacs on the basis 6f financial irregularity which
includes: bllls of teachers. This. WliIleSb is ignorant of the
f‘lCt wl 1611161 bllls of the teachers have been paid or not..
(vii) Shu Arun Kumar Dixit hfts also stated that at district and
Hmh Comt level, the Advocates who were working earlier,

they were removed and the delmquenl ofﬁcer deputed his
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fdvorite Advocates due to \x}hich double fees was paid
jWhiCh caused financial loss to the University.

(Viii)‘ The witness further stated that in the canteens situated in
Paliwal Park and Khandarj _Campﬁs ‘dues were not
recovered and Finance Officer Shri A.K. sSingh being
subordinate to Prof. Ashok Mittal should have been
‘brought to book for nofrecoveri_ng the dues from both the
Cante‘ehs, | e |
(ix) The delinquent officer has close terms with education

mafias. out of which the Manager of Chacha Vishal

‘Mahavidyalaya namely Shri R.K. Gupta faced enquiries
many times and in every inquiry he was found guilty. The
then Registrar, Shri Anjam Kumar Ml@‘ also conducted

an inquiry about the afmesald e and the mquny

1ep011 was sent to the Go i%u m due to which Prof.
Mlttdl was annoyed and d the ka of the aforesaid

Shri AnJ ani Kumar %@

(x) Thc dehnquent Prof. Ashok Mittal has committed
: scam of crox ?‘ef rupees in’ ﬂle afﬂhaf;lon department.
[mmﬂy h&}) hointed his own pcople in the department,
after that he increased the Seats of B.P.Ed, M.Ed, etc. due
to which there was a scam of lacs of rupees. Even after the
expuy of the prescribed time, Ploi Mlttal took ‘E‘M.BMV
fee’ and mcleabed the numbel of seats 'md affiliation with
i‘he\ collusion of Assistant Registrar, Shri Anoop.
(x1) M/S ‘Le‘ela Jay Technology Private Limited had its matter

pending in which a counter claim of Rs. 5.5 crore was
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made. All the relevant documents, | computers and
e‘;\/idences of this firms were seized and kept in a room
V\}here this firm was working. This matter was being
l(j)oked after by this witness namely Shri Arun Kumar Dixit
b;m Prof. Ashok Mittal in collusion with the firm, took
l
V\;/mngﬁﬂ gain from the firm, opened the lock of the room
a:nd took possession of the evidences and documents due
10 which the' University suffered huge financial loss,

b;ecause this matter is pending disposal with the Arbitrator.

|

(byWitness AW-2, Shri Rahul Solanki has stated on oath

(Annéxure- A-8/1 to A-8/6) that:

(1)

(ii)

His uncle, Mr. Viresh, was posted as clerk in the history
department against whom an enquiry wa@ismmed. He
Was wrongly found guilty and he wagcfrged of burning
mark sheets. An F IR was also | @’e&d against him and he
%Nas punished twice for &@\ wrong which was not
(Eomm'itted by him. Tl e Chancellor has one very
close person namelyNVt Verma and one Mr. Shukla and
there are many %Qé‘rs who do forgery.

An FIR has? \bcen lodged agamst 18-20 persons Lmdu
the Anti-Corruption Act but still they are working in the
University. This witness was tried to be won over one Shri
Naresh Bharadwaj, who is an Accountant in the Kashganj
College and Mr. Ranjeet Yadav brought him to the house
of Prof. Mittal and Prof. Mittal asked this witness to give
an affidavit to the effect that this witness had filed an

incorrect affidavit on the ill advice of someone and also
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tried to influence this witness and said that he would give
3& job to-his aunt i.e. wife of Viresh. This witness refused
to follow the direction of the delinquent officer. This
witness further stated that he hésall the audio recording if
the location and audio recordings are covnnected, it would

be crystal clear that he was present at the places where he

has stated in his statement. He has also proved his

:comp]aint and later filed the audio recérding before the
}é}nqﬁiry Committee. |

(c) Witneiss T‘A_W,—B, Shri Hari Govind Agarwal stated on oath

nexure- A-9/1 to A-9/8) that:

(i) He -commenced the work as Legal Advisor in the

University ‘since 25" November, > He got an
z?:ip_poilmnent letter. He has been re 0_@1'6& as an Advocate
zi%l.nd his Bar Council Registrdt' (‘3‘ is 2027/79. He has
1%1'&cticed on the civil si \&reaﬁer he started the work
(%)f consﬁltancy; He }Qy?nterviewed oni 23" November,
2020. He 1s una}{\ek of the procedure 'adopted in his
a.ppointmént\%et Shri Harish Chandra at the residence )
of one kHiéH%Court Judge JuStic“é Mukhtat Ahmad. Shri

Harish Chandra requested him to work as Legal Advisor

to the University as that post was lying vacant. He is
ignorant of the fact whether his post was created, accepted
or not. He is getting Rs. 30,000?61‘ month honorarium.
No other service condition was fixed when he was
appointed for six months or till further orde_‘rs. After that,

his appointment was extended for another six months. He
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could not point out before the Inquiry Committee as to
under what provisions benefits are granted to the
dependents of dying in harness employees. He said that
he could not tell anything about the finance matter.
L . Further he has stated that one Shri Makhan Singh who was
appointed in the University, his case was being conducted
'by Shri Arun Dixit, who was negligent in conducting the

case due to which Shri Makhan Singh obtained about Rs.

£ ' 8.00 lacs from the year 2012 to 2020. He informed this
. matter to the Executive Council. He has further stated that

AW-1 Dr. Arun Di_Xit never told him that the execution

could be struck of in full satisfaction by compromise on
S ‘payment of Rs. 1,58,000. He denied th that Dr. Arun
£ | ‘ Kumar Dixit‘wés replaced by Mr. '\gdh Kishore Gautam
and a huge amount had to be R@j\&B‘y the University in the

aforesaid execution case. further said that in B.Com

andk m other classes Q%s testimonials and academic

records, his name Qbeen mentioned as Hart Govind

Gupta. He c%a{ﬁ?g his name somewhere in the 80s. He
d

n oath that when he deposited his academic

further state
credentials in the University, the Assistant Registrar, Shri
Gautam questioned him on which he submitted an
affidavit. He categorically admitted that from 25"
November, 2020 till date, he is Wdrking as Har1 Govind

Agarwal whereas his credential and academic records

mentions his name as Hari Govind Gupta. He could not

. assign any reason. why his appointment was as Hari
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Govind Agarwal whereas all his academic records are in

the name of Hari Govind Gupta. He has admitted that he

sent paper no. 104/9415 (19/2006), Annexure- B-18/ 11,

directly to the Vice Chancellor on 03 April, 2021
without adhering to the procedure of sending papers
through proper channel but could not'explzlined why he
did so. - ' '

This witness was recalled on oath by the Inquiry
Committee, he stated that paper no. 152/12561(

(Annexure- B-61) is not forged. He has also stated that

hé did kreconnnend.the paymen't of Rs. 4,28,109.29 in the
lexelcuition matter and his opinion was sought by the
Assistant Registr'a‘r, Shri Kaﬂasl@ud. This withess also
said, that he gaveba'report.t ajfhere was no stay m the
execution andvhe Intery 1?&: ‘the following lines as being

a Stay order of the H@b Court:

A I afle g 34002001 fie
1608.209{@' aferfer & foffer e o TR
(d) Witness A\XSS?“ 1s Shri Rajendra Singh who also sent a

complaim\.khs complaint was mainly with regard to Dr. Rakesh

Gupta, .Manager - of -~ Chacha Vishal Singh  Kanya
Mahav.idyalaya, Jalesher Road, Pura Govardhan, Agra. He has
stated (Annexure- A-10/1 to A~1®/2) that the aforesaid college

has no infrastructure. There i8 no electricity, water, washrooms,
playgrounds and other basic facilities in the aforesaid college.

The students were being harassed and after realizing lacs of

rupees as fees, the girls were not permitted for the examination.
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ThelManager physically and mentally tortured the girl students,
misbehaved with them and even manhandled them. Hence, he

- prayed that recognition/approval of B.Ed classes of Chacha

Vishal Smgh Kanya Mahavidyalaya, Agra be withdrawn.

(e) Witness AW-5 is Ms. Megha Bansal. Her complaint is also
£ i

against the Chacha Vishal Singh Kanya Mahavidyalaya, in

| -
which she said (Annexure- A-11) that the Manager, Dr. Rakesh

Gupta took fee for B.Ed from her and gave her the receipt but
|

Hﬁfiﬂ]‘:l@l’ he got any classes conducted nor gave this witness any
éclmiission or admit card and even did not permit her to appear
for tljle examination. She has concluded her statement by stating
that in the aforesaid Chacha Vishal Singh College, there is no
electricity, water, washrooms and any ¥ infrastructure
where classes can be conducted. C)

(f) Wimjess‘ AW-6, Mr. Anjani Kuma %shra, the then Registrar

| _

of thé Dr. Bhimrao AmbedkarAMiversity, Agra is a witness not
namefd i the charge shQ?but he was summoned by the
Committee because lﬁ&\gtement was.necessary in the end of
justice and for 't]_le\i}g?{isposal of the inquiry. This witness has
stated (Ammmﬁ%— A-12/1 to A-12/5) that in the Executive

Council meeting dated 20" January, 2021, there were some
differences between him and the delinquent officer due to
which he wanted to see the recordjng of the Executive Council
meeting, but he was denied. After which he was not present in
certam meetings of Executive Council, In February, 2021, the
delinquent officer seized all his rights/work w/s 13(1). This

witnesses has stated that there were three points of differences
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between him and the Vice Chancellor. The first being the matter
of appointment of Neeraj Goyal, the second being the matter of
appointment of Shri Hari Govind Agarwal and guest faculty

members and lastly the matter of Chacha Vishal Singh Kanya

Maha \i.dyalaya; Agra. | ,
(g)’W:imes:;S CW-‘]F‘,‘ Mr. Radhika Prasad Yadav, has stated 011]021t]1

(Amne&ure;ﬁ-ﬂ) that the Legal Advisor, Shri Hari Govind

Agarwialv,' ruled the legal department. He used fo take the files
to his 'house ‘without any endorsement or without informing
anybody. Tt was. mandatory for the all the officials tobobey and
fo'ﬂowi hiéﬂii‘eéﬁons.The executidﬁ file in dispute was handed
over to Sh;‘i Hari Govind ‘Agarwal which was never returned in

the department.. . @
(h)CW-2iis Slﬂ‘&jMandMnda who stated @}mexmén A-22) that

. i . gy ' n N “ R
he is appomted in Vice Chancellog\@fxce, who used to send the

| :
newspaper news to the Vice eellor. He also on the day of

]_nquirjif, ‘got a print O};l‘t foQ‘%‘del_iv1_1qi_16nt;0fﬁcsr.’ﬂ,
After this, began the g@nce of ‘the 'de_linquen;t officer. The

delinquent officer ¢ '1\?5%“1ist of as many as 07 witnesses working
in the University DeNides himself to defend him.
(a) Witness DW-1 is Smt. Mamta Singh, who did not say anything

and said (Annexure- A-13) that he did not want to give any

evidence. Asis cvident‘fro'm the list of W‘_itn_es’sesb Submitted ‘by ‘
the d‘elinqueht offic:ei‘, this Witli'e'sé.:is Wbrking as Assistant
Registrar in the University. '\

W'iméss-DW—Z is Mr. Arun Kumar Singh is Finance Officer,

Dr. Bhimrao Ambedkar University, Agra. This witness ‘has
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stated (Annexure- A-14/1 to A-14/4) that there is no matier of

dual payment which came to his knowledge. Whatever
payments were in anticipation of the approval of the Finas nce
Committee or the Executive Council. In those cases, approval
Wajs obtained later on. The increased fee taken from ihe
CO‘I eges was never returned to them. The dues on the Khandar
anfdl Paliwal Park canteens were pending prior to the tenure of
Pi‘(})'f‘. Ashok Mittal. The contractor of both the canteens moved
apjﬂ)hcations for exemptions of rent for the corona period which
was put before the Finance Committee in which orders were
pa§sed that if both the contractors deposit their complete dues
in the University, then from March, 2020 to 15" August, 2021,

80 percent of the rent can be waived off ar *@mwtec He has
further stated that when the matter of ffayment of bills of the

§

/\dVOCHlC" came to light, the deli zz@em officer constituted a

I

committee to review the billg 1e Advocates and said thai

le. The aforesaid reporl was

extra payment is being
summoned by the MQ{Q/ Committee on the request of the
delinquent othccz@ since the delinquent officer himself
filed copy of m& cport of the committee hence the original
report was returned to Presenting Officer.

Witness DW-3 is Ajay Kumar Gautam has stated on oath

(Annexure- A-15/1 to A-15/3) that he is working as Assistant

. . ot ~ - ..
Registrar since 04" February, 2020. Before he jomed, some

payments were made in the law department but those files are
not-available in the department. To set the ‘matter right, a

committee was constituted on the proposal of Shri Hari
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Uovmd this witness w
|

it was found that there were some A
|

as a member of the Committee, in which

dvocates who did not do

| . . ,

the! work assigned to them, hence, the commitiee
i

recommended that they should complete their work. He has
1

also stated that the Vice Chancellor constituted a committee,
|

for su utiny and audit of the pendmg bills, whose report was

submztted but in the Executive Council
19, 08 2021 at item no.

meeting  dated
: 15, the Finance Committee did not
accctpt the report and said that the version of the Advocate
houild also be heard before deciding the matter due to which
til tlLe date of the statement of this witness, the report had not
beco;‘ne final nor had been accepted.

(d) Witness DW-4 is Mr. Anoop Kumar, is wen ng as Assistant

2 7@) who has stated
(Ammmw@ A-16/1 to A-16/3) tl,’g\my the seats allotted by

NCTEE were given to the u(@ S. No seats were allotted
buyond lha, limits. ?\%

(&) Witness DW 51sMr. ]ig:i&h Bind who has s{dtcd (Anmma
A-17/1 to A- E”//?ﬁ;)§~ tially that he does not want to say

anything in ev’fgnce but when he was recalled afier

R@Wistrar since 30" December' 2

submission of certain documentary evidence, he stated that he

did not propose the removal of Advocate Mr. Gagan Mehata

to be replaced by Advocate Mr. Vivek Rai in the case of Mr.

Neeraj Goyal. He has also said that he informed thedel_mcp;u:m

officer about all the correspondence.

(1) Witness DW-6, Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Singh. He is the Registrar

of the University and also the Presenting Officer in the present
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inquiry: He has stated (Amnexure- A—)AB) that he has only

worked for 3 to 4 days during the tenure of Prof. Ashok Mittal.

Witness DW-7, Mr. Hari Mohan, who is working as Engineer

m the [Qniversity. He has deposed on oath (A}mmxmr@? A-19/1
to A—E?/.Z) that the delinquent officer orally directed him to get

prepaid electricity meter installed in all the residences so that

[
i

direct { payments could be done but since the
occupail'ltS/residents did not Comple'te the formality, hence on
3 J’uneiz, 2021, notices were givven to them. Prof. Ashok Mittal
has rlot! connhitted any irregularity in this matter but in fact the
work cjgaught speed during the tenuré_ of Pfof. Ashok Mittal. _

Witness ~‘DW—8 is Prof. Ashok Mittal, Vice Chancellor
(abstaihed froni work), Dr. Bhimrao Ambe@c University,
Agra &jivhd is the delinquent officer, d sdsdd on oath and
suppor;ted his written version (Anmexg@ A-20/1 to A-20/32).
(1) \éfimess DW—& Prof. Ash@?ﬁal siated_tha‘t on oath

that after he took char&@ﬂs efforts, he g@t about more

than four lacs ofzmarksheets sent to the concerned
colleges for diss bution and about 40 thousands degrees
were sent ' }16 residential address of the students. He
has further -said that the legal departmeﬁt was not
working prdperly, hence, he deputed a Legal Advisor for
a .shoﬁ' period.

He also said that keeping in ViC\«Vvthé lethargy and
improper Work:ing in the legal depaﬂment; lack of pairvii,
avoidance of work, negligence etc. to idehtify the perso’nsk

responsible, he constituted a five member committee,
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constituting of two retired HJS rank judicial officer, two
Professors and an Assistant Registrar (law). This
comlﬁittee sent its report which should be read and
considered in his defence.

He deposed that he further constituted a three member

committee, headed by an HJS ranked judicial officer and

Afwhose members were the Chief Treasury Officer, Agra
and Assistant Registrar (legal) to look into the matter of

]
ﬂle payment of bills and to re-fix and to remove the

émbjguities in payment of fee to the Advocates which
filed its report on 17.04.2021 which was approved by the
Finance Committee and Executive Coungil. After that on

the suggestion of the Executive Counes »a three member

@omnﬂﬁeé was formed which y‘g@eaded by a judicial

officer of the rank of HJS Wj&%\’i/o members, one being
a‘ Charteréd'ACCOLintan' % the other bé}fng Assistant
Plegistrar ‘(legaljz '%'e report - was 'S'ubmitted on
30.07.2()21 Whigg hould be read in favour of the
delinquent o@% | »

In the,resiabgtial department, the personal files of many
teachers were missing and th‘at of many teachers were not
being maintained properly and were il] maintained. This
witness after a lot of efforts got duplicate records of some
of the teachers and to get the seniority list which was
défective, ‘updated for which he constituied 2 three
member committee comprising of one retired Registrar

as Chairman, one Professor of the Central University and
/ )V . {\/ nge 43 of 133
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Dean and one Assistant Re gistrar (RW) as members, who
have not submitted the report.

The Umvelsnty Statutes which were not updated for the
last 20 years, were got updated Qn the directions of the

Govemm House.

(vx) He has also stated ﬂlal he took pxacucally all the

}
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decisions af‘ter consultatxon Wlth the Finance Committee

-and the Execunve Council or if any decision was taken

n anhmpahon the same was .got approved by both the
aforesaid committees. He has also stated that he called
for the maximum meetings in his tenure and all pending
promotions were disposed of, besides this, he also started

the leoulal 1zation of the employees v&/@wm‘e pending

since long, ‘ O

(vii) The publication committee g blished a souvenir on

the achievements of this wi@ess, which souvenir was got
released by Shri Dg hesh” Sharma, Deputy Chief
Mjmster of Uttsn esh which was submitted by this

witness befor ﬁ;@i‘s Inquiry Committee which is annexed
as, paper ﬂ@ 67/]2590 to 162/]’7620 Annexure- B-

45/1 to B-45/28.

(viii) This witness attached 103 guesr faculties on the request

of the Head of Depal tments which were appomted purely
on tempmanly basis for shou period. In th}s matter, the
letter dated 28™ J January, 2019 of UGC is not applicable
because the directions given in this letter have neither
been accepted by the State Goverﬁment‘ nor by the
o / ' /PageSOofBEz
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University and there is no mention of the procedure for

appointment of guest faculties or their attachment. The

Ty
§

Qtatute states only about permanent appointments. 1ae
guest  faculties were appointed by three micmber
committee. His predecessors also adopted the same
procedure and he did not increase the remuneration of
anyone. Since, there are vacancies in the University,
hence, for the smooth running of the classes and
imparting of regular education and knowledge, guest
faculties are always invited to give lectures and they are
also invited to work and teach although there (EIY
provision in the University Statute. Hence, he has only
followed the procedure and line ¢ 'Xé%@n set forth by his
predecessors and has not C(iﬂ\l@eai any irregularity and

no loss has been caus &"to the University by the

appointment of guegieC iliies. He obtained oral consent
of Shr Mah@‘?ﬁ(umm‘ Gupta, Additional Chief
Secrelm*y y @Chuneelmr and Smt. Monika 5. Garg,
/\dditia{@%hief Secretary, Higher Education, State o f
'Umw‘%radesl’l, After that only, he started further
proceedings in the matter. Presently, there are only 40
permanent regular teachers for teaching and about 100

guest faculiies are serving the University since many

years. This was also done by the predecessors of this
witness. The committee constituted by him for this
purpose was well constituted because any FIR against

any person should be taken care of by the Governor

2
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House. Besides in this FIR No. 0592 dated 05.09.2018

(Annexure- B-19/1 te B-19/8), it has been lodged

{a.ga‘inst 19 people which include two prior Vice

%Chancellors.
(1x) ;ﬁ\.s far as the preparation and publication of the Hand
%Book is concerned, he has not committed any financial
j‘illegah[y or wrregularity. In as much as Rs. 50,000 for
ipreparation and updating the Hand Book and Rs. 12,100
1?“01‘ stationary was granted to Dr. Harish Chandra which
%’necision was taken in the meeting of the Executive
Councﬂ on 01.10.2019 at item no. 05 and was appro?ed.
iu the Finance Committee on 09.10.2020 gt item no. 24,
(x) This witness has also stated tﬁat the sion regarding
zii,ppoin‘tmem of Neeraj Goyal wad nof taken during his
t%;:nure. In fact, the Executive G&%’(‘:ii in its meeting dated
2;5.[].1.2017, 31.07.2019 01.10.2019 resolved that
Shri Neeraj Goyal %;poimed in the self-financed
scheme on cont%"ual basis as Computer Operator. In

this regard, {NsJpredecessor also sought legal opinion.
The then Vice Chancellor passed orders and directed the
Registrar on 20.01.2020 to comply with the orders of the
Executive Council. In the mat‘[er. of Neeraj Goyal, Shii
Gagan Mehta Advocate was not vigilant, hence, he was
replaced by Mr. Vivek Rai Advocate. Since, Shri Gagan
Mehta Advocate was not updating this witness about the
progress of the case and was not taking keen interest and

was indifferent towards the case. All the decisions were
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taken by this witness were in the favour of the University
and to safeguard the interest of the University.

DW-8, Prof. Ashok Mittal has further deposed on oath

that hedid not appoint anyone after the age of 70 years

but for the smooth functioning of the University, all the
appo:intment‘made by him, were in due regard to the

circumstances of the University and were deputed on

“minimum -honorarium. All the decisions taken by him

were approved by the Executive Council. Witness AW-
1, Dr. Arun Kumar Dixit ﬁever apprised this witness
about any demand made by Shri Hari Govind Agarwal.

As | Legards the breach of protocol - of Covid—19 18
concerned,  this witness has stat&N'that only the
administrati@ officers have 1_"1%1\1‘ take &ction in case
of breach. He has further saic\hat he has followed all the
guidéhnes and protocgiGssued by the Government m
regard }to covid—l‘)@%ly. When he was declared covid-
19 positive, he.}g&lted himself and after testing negative,
he starte &&%cina.tion center Which has now become a

permanent - vaccination center by which numerous

persons are being benefitted.

(xiii) Shri Hari Govind Agarwal is not related to him nor he

(5

U ST,

U1 )

RISqUTE AR, Solo |

has been wrongly 'appoiﬁted.nox any financial loss has
been caused to the Un‘ive‘rsity due to his 'appointment.
Since the load of work ih' the legal department was
excessive hence on the recommendation of Dr. Harish
Chandra, retired Deputy Registfar', who was working in

-4
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gthe University as OSD, Shri Hari Govind Agarwal was
fa‘ppointed as Legal Advisor on a payment of Rs. 30,000
;pel month, whose dppomtment was approved by the
L‘(GCHUVC Council.

(X1V) | {As far as the mqpecuon of colleges is concerned,

JWh@]l(,VCI such demand was made, the affiliation

depcu tment gave areport on the demand and this witness

*deputed experienced and able teachers in the panel to do

}:he needful. The Executive Council has not constituted
I .

| -

any panel for the last many years nor at present any

approved panel by the Executive Council is in existence.

However, the panel consmuted by him has been

approved by the Executive Council i \}{mumo dated

20 01.2021 in its proceedings at 13&@6 04 (Ammexm*e—
B-49/97). ,’3\‘?*

(xv) fn self-financed schem@lege, the teachers are
app(nmed thr ough the Q}g‘tlon committee for which !.WO
subject expert Leacl@ are nominated which has nothing
to do with ﬂ]]\%%@bs Further, he has stated that he has
not prom ote%ny teacher during his tenure nor has given
any undue advantage or benefit to any teacher.

(xvi) He has further stated that he has no relations with any

education mafia nor he has ever misused his post He
further stated that he did not seize the work/rights of the

Registrar but to bring pace to the work and to regularize
t!ie work, passed orders on 25.02.2021 that the files

relating to residential unit department, teachers
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department, affiliation department and law department

|
shall be put before him for orders/approval through the

|

Assistant Registrar. This order was passed by him on
25.02.2021 (Annexure- B-60).

(xvii)The seats for admission for B.P.Ed, M.Ed and other

subjects are decided by the National Council of Teachers

Education (NCTE) and it was beyond the right of this

witness to increase the seats. The colleges in question,

ifqr whom increase of seats has been stated in those

colleges since teachers were not approved as per the

criteria, less seats were released for admission. When

those colleges got the approval from the University, then

the admission was permitted with regapde the ratio of
student and approved teachers. C)

l . .
(xviii) This witness has further stated 5!?&1} his tenure, he has

not committed any finang uregularity as far as
electricity charges are med also because, as soon
as, it came to his kn dge that fixed charges are being

realized for useg?‘électricity, he took notice of the fact
and started fﬂi&*pmcess of prepaid meters and issue

many guidelines also. Thus, he saved the University from

financial loss. Since, the matler of dues pending on both
the canteens, .Was not put before him and the dues were
prior to his ‘takiﬁg charge, hence, it was the duty of the
Finance Officer of the University to realize the

outstanding dues against the canteens. This witness states
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that he had not violated any prov;isim{g of the Hﬂﬂndncial\x
hand book.
This witness has also stated that an appeal is pending
against the penalty imposed'dn the University which
“does not pertain to his tenure. |
He has further stated that the then Registrar Lt. Col.
Anjani Kumar Mishra always sat over the files, he did
not do kthe. correspondence i'n time and the letters received
X ﬁom the Governor House were not complied or replied
m time, hence, to give pace to the work of the University,
he passed Oldelb that some flleq of some depan tments be
sent direct to the Vice Chancellor’s office, due to which
the aforesaid Shri Anjani Kumar Misiya and Dr. Arun
- Kumar Dlmt stalted sending @m laints to =~ the
| Chdnu,ll - o “’i\ N |
(xx1) 1As far as Mr. Naresh Bl waj is concerned, he does
‘not know who Nare @mmdwu is and when Mr. Rahul’
Solanki and otb§camu to his house, he scolded them
and turne \§ 7 out of his house. Rahul Solanki is

r emdenf,ﬁ

administrative decisions of the University, hence, all the

1strict Badaun and has nothing to do with the

charges levied against him are baseless and he is liable to

be exonerated from all the charges lewed upon him.

Findings on Charge No. 01

Charge No 01 on the delinquent officer is that he appointed guest

lecturers in different depaumems d,mmg hls tenure violating all the

_‘v,,./—j//’/. Page 56 of 133
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laws, principles and guidelines as laid by the Uhiversity and UGC,

besides,
members

Esi‘abﬁshl

adopted Was‘ﬂlegal. No demand was made by the Head of

Departme

he constituted an illegal committee constituting of

‘against whom FIR was registered under the Vigilance

nent. These appointments were illegal. The procedure

nts and no justification was given for the vacancies,

Thus, violating the provisions of the Uttar Pradesh State

oo

Universit‘ies» Act, 1973,
The delinqucnt officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal submitted before the

Inquiry Committee that there are no guidelines and specific

pmvis:}ions) for appointment of guest faculties hence he adhered to

the proce

throughout. With due regard to the delinquent ofé@ we are in

dure which  his predecessors in office were adopting

uttex dmegnd to ﬂns argument because even ﬁe&mmg for the

l\c of ax

guments that there 1s no plovlsmp@a solutcl Wg;yywl me

regar chng

lmpdlmll

)

ty and transparency, the by

should have been adhe1ed t \3%&111110 thcﬂeby 'ldveitzcanw the

appomtment of guest chul@ even 1hen to mcunt’nn

plmmpleq of na_tumi justice

posts mVItng ﬂ]e apphca &P‘s, uonshtuhon ot a pmpel commn‘m, »

wﬂh Lrt least one subjcc&xp@lt exammauon of the e xglbﬂny of

“the candl

dfﬂes and their academic Credentlal _interaction or

mterwcws then 1cp01t of the selectlon commlttee zmd fpally

apploval by the Vlce Chmcellor and Lxeculwe Councﬁ alon g with

37.  Inthisreg

Elld lhe main complamclm AW-1, D1 Arun Kumar Dixit

has stated on oath (Annexure- A-7/1 to A-7/14) that 103 guest

faculties were appointed illegally by Prof. Ashok Mittal during his

£2,

S
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tenure.

\
| .
qualifications and a three-member committee comprising of Shri

| ,
Anil \i/erma, Prof. P.X. Singh and Prof. Manu Pratap Singh was

These faculties were not fulfilling the requisite

constiiiuted by Prof. Ashok Mittal. This committee itself was illegal
since the "m’embers‘ themselves were disqualified and were not

|

eli gxblc to bcc,ome members of the committee.

This WHHGSS AW—I Dr. Arun Kumar Dixit, was cross-examined

by Prof. Ashok. Mittal when he stated that he did not give his

w
opinion puor to the appomtmem of the aforesaid guest faculti
because he gave his opinion whenever his opinion asked for, and

‘in this matter he was never asked to give legal opinion. This

wimessﬁ was qﬁestioned as to how he came to know that the rules
and regulations had been ﬂouied n appointm@s of guest faculties
to which the witness replied that as soon s € came to know about

! ' , : - o
the maﬂ;er, he reported the matter. Eqstler, he has stated that since
these appomtments are 1llegal, h@me the emoluments granted 10‘
them a]so would be illegal ents and would amount to crores
of rupees which caused 8y®at financial Iosses to the University.
AW~2 Mr. Rahul &?m ki has also stated 1he same version in his
affidavit Wthh%})db pr oved. |

Now, the version of AW-6, Shri Anjani Kumar Mishra summoned

by the Inquiry Committee, who was the Registrar of this University

at the relevant time has also to be looked into. Having a bird’s eye

view of his statement, which says that he filed his objection

regardmﬂ tho selectlon of guest faculmeq in the hle No
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candidates were not checked. Those who were not eligible were

i

"ﬂs C hsidered besides the Uuideline% ofthe UGC and Section 31

Witneqsi ha@ further stated that when his ob'ecmons were overruled

This

S i

he age U:n 1equested that hlS ob;ecllons may bP 1econsxdexed but lhh

was not done and even hcuhleq Who were not ehoxble were

mchaded

40. A | )eczhc quemon was put to this witness, whether at the time of
commencement of selection of guest faculties, he had informed the
Vice Chancellor about the UGC Rules and Statutes. In reply, the

witness was very-very specific and stated as follows:

wrror: ST e e hepee? & ‘ﬁﬁ‘ﬂﬁ: &t e Wgﬁﬁwwm%
1 AE FHATT SHTT o7 o 5 AT T TYT @ T & faree

22

TR I e therere S ERIEaCIRUE R
S & St W w8 e farerr farat 9

& W ue et vear
sitfere Frsrfror a0 1 TN
& kL4 FHr b viab

@?ﬁﬁ%vm@ Fwerala

o S T TS S 5 W
5w Wt Al @ forg
v B Tora SITe-sarer ahl e
K@?ﬁw@iﬁ w0 g0 Ual @t g kﬁc}

ST ST TTSS TS %‘%?s’m*m&r o A et fererm & wEr S

eE & ToTe Tep gEaent Tanfa &6 oft Forad 97 ves werde s

ot Ry geratera wrafore & grqul gEaT 9 g AT

TSR I WTH o1 UV Teh HIIE T o 1018 Ges @il

e ferd < g wATaet sqaeia @) el fye v g
e fa g aiute sy e forar w1 3w afify 3§ vawren
&t FgRe & wregia o faar oflv 3o alita @ am getawr o

( eioo it )
ST SEH,

AT =iy, Jodo |
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Now, 1@1 us see. what Prof. Ashok Mittal, DW-8, the delinquent

olﬁwxﬂhaq to say in this matter. He has stated that duri ing ms
tenure, hc appomted 103 guest faculties as per demand which were
audched for ‘a short period. Hley were not kept undel fulltime
appomtl?aents. The letter dated 28.01.2019 of the UGC is not
relevant for this procedure because these guidelines have neither
been ad%opted by the government nor by the University. In the
Umvelbuy otatutes/lhnd Book there is no provi‘sions of
appomiment of guest faculties, bemdes it states only about regular

permanent posts. The three—member selectxon@mmnttee formed

by him {Was of experienced Professors ghd+was based on the

demand of the Head 0’[ the Departm ?55%\1118 eligibility of all the

and,ldates was exammed Even j to him, his predecessors in
office had been ad.optmd me plocedure Hence, he has

S ecmcaﬂ said in ]ns 3 atemem Aﬂmmm*eu A-20/1 to A-
p y

20/32) that: ‘ ‘i}w
“3TeH wF@n@m? c@%‘?ﬁwwfwﬁm@w@mﬁwww

ém??‘&www fparT 2, et o oY anid avlaariorarar 78 i 2,
@@waﬁm@ Frerfremera @ fret T &6 @12 enfels afd
/8T TE 53 B

Further, this witness has said that he showed the relevant file to

Mr. Mahesh Kumar Gupta, Additional Chief Secretary to the
Hon’ble Chancellor and Smt. Monika S. Garg, Additional Chief

Secretary, Higher Education Department and after their oral
o
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apm'ovalj he proceeded in the matter. He has further stated that hig

lfn'edecesgors m officer too never advertised the posts nor took the
advice oéf any specialized person. He has gone to the extent of
saying th’xt if his appomtmcnt of guest faculties is illegal then the
{ | same would be the positions with the appointment of guest

faculties, by his predecessors. When this witness, Prof. Ashok

ey : o . .
Mittal, Wa% cross examined by the Inquiry Committee, he stated
that he hye ~passed. the Re(flsu ar in all the couespondenu Just to

give pdw to the matters. T hls 18 not a plauqzb}e expldnauon nor can

e

i

‘uc, acccpied by ﬂ,ny suetch of Jmaglmnon occauqc the V ice

Chanw!lor has no right to bye-pass the Registrar on}y for the
purposes of giving pace to work. When he was questioned as to
could he bye-pass the Registrar under his @sts within the
pr OVlbiODb 0f 16.3 and 16.4 of Uttar Pradesh Universities Act,
1973, on Wlnoh he replied that generdll ‘cannot bé done but in
special cjﬁ'cumstances work can be Q@Q ed over to other person. In
the pres <,m case, no uch spegivcircumstance ha@ cropped up
which compelled the de u@%m officer to recall certain very
mmportant departments @‘& the Registrar. The delinquent office
Prof. Ashok \/hu%\mted that he had these powers under the
provisions of 13(1)(a) of the Uttar Pradesh State Universities Act,
1973. Here, restraining ourselves a lot, but still we are compelled
to state that this shows the poor knowledge of rules and regulations

.

of hc delinquent officer, Proft. As_hok Mittal because no such_

power; are given to the VJce C ancellor under %cuon .3( l )(J 0

koo

the Umn Pmdesh Staie UIHVSISIUC&. Acl 1973 In as much as

e

@EM@W@ HATHT
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Section 13(1)(a) of the Uttar Pradesh State Universities Act, 1973
runs as follows:
C13(0)(a) exercise general supervision and control over the
affuirs-of the University including the constituent colleges and
the 1173‘11’!(1/[(35 maintained by the University and its affiliaied and
‘
ussociated colleges; "
When this witness was asked as to how many persons were

appointed in the self-financed scheme, he stated that the most

et

biggest di’i’}‘j:“icuhiy in Agra University is that there is no distinction

T

between the regular course and the self-financed scheme course.
He had directed orally the Registrar to take action in the matier,
who orally told him that after exhausting all his resources he is not
able to do this work. He has further stated that he aE.'\@wEiy asked

him know, @% courses are

e

all the Head of Departments to le
under the self-financed scheme and which oz@z‘c regular, He said
that he does not have knowledge of ap®M0. issued in the year
2000 and he could not say whether (%@ppoim.mems made by him
were according to the G.O. or @mce he had not seen the G.O.
but \?vhute\k/ér appointments \%}xe made, they were made as per the
customs prevalent durig \b@ last many years. He has further said
that 90 percent of the appointments of those who were already

working and there was a G.O. that having regard to the covid-19

pes)

disease, faculties already working should be appointed. He has

further stated that he did not issue advertisement for fresh

appointments because due to covid-19, the people already working

ted. He has admitted that he was orally told tha

R

e

people were appointed who did not have
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“(HWSW& eligibility, hence, ‘they were not invited for guest’
ﬂ‘ aauﬂtty but ﬂmy were kept as Research Assosuates/Assgsmm di

the honorarium of Rs. 12 to 14 ﬂmusands per mamh Now we

B
erp——— T

fail to Lmdelstand when a person did not lnvc the 1eqm&,m

g A T AT T

<, BPUP———' —

cligibil'ity, wlul was the necessity of enoagmg them dt ’my

[

honorarium, is this not-waste of money‘7 He further said that Prof.

Anil Vumcx told hlll’l that pr ev1ously alqo appomtmen ts were being‘
made n ihls manner and there is no 1ﬂeg'1hty in this, taking his
version to be conect he '1pp1 oved the hst He has tmthel stated
that the UGL cncuhr relating to the guest f’lcuhy has not yct bem ‘
adopted by the State and a custom is prevalcm in Agra Umvualw

that 1if culy pelqon is lesser quahﬁed ‘_W_t havmg regard to the locld ‘

ST

ot wmk he Wﬂl be kept on 1055 honorarium. ‘He R as albO szud that

G.0. No. ,914/70' 4/2000- 7(7)/94 dated 04“@ aly 2000 is not

S

_in hu, noUcc, 1101 the Reglsu ar brought thi§ G70...

th it was pomted out by the Inqu ommittee and asked this
witness, DW 8, whether AnishASI] gh' Library Qcience, Shivani:
Sharma, Ihstmy, Prlym\lyQ omputer Science “and Neelam,
Chemistry DepartmenfyVno were appointed as guest lecturer were
they fulfilling the‘;g\qgsﬂe guidelines of the UGC and whether he
had confirmed this fact at the time of ’1})1310\/31 At this the witness
Prof. Ashok Mlttal 1ephed that he had no knowledge about these
four Jfaculties and he had approved the list, kecpma in regard me
fact that the comnnttee had apploved the list. Besides this, it was
Pﬂc duty of the comimittee to look into this matter and no

repr esematlon was made to him qbout thxs irregularity.
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i
44, He H&s admitted that he did not advertise posts for any guest
faculty. He had orally requested the Heads of Departments to put

| the advertisement on the website out of which some HODs had put

‘ E - -
{he advertisement on website but some had not. If the University

W
! \

has qwun zmy such report that the posts have not been advertised

on the website then the report wou]d be correct. Reference here has

to be gmn about the mpou filed by the University which is paper

no. 165/1 2628 (Ammmu e- B- 3‘9) in which it has been held that no

vaumcy or advertisement was advertised on the website of the
| _

Umveleﬂy regarding the appointment of Guest faculties in the

scsmon 2020-21. Ahhough this paper has been denied by the

dehnquum officer, but as said earlier, he is changing his statement

in every breath, because in his statement givgriwbove he had said

X

that ﬂle University 1613011 ‘would be cauec@when the Umvel‘sity

]3011 was shown to him, he denied § Mus, it is established that

no advemsemun of any kind v@?}]}ub ished for Ag),lquﬁgtm@gp‘}:‘)if

guu,i fncultxcq by Lhe cehn&@@ofﬁcm

45. ‘“Tlm sccond Lcomsne i@ omtmmt of Gﬁ@% faculties would be
the presence of at one SUbJCCT expert during the course of
appoint which w\@\tacking in the present case. In as much as, Prof.
Ashok Mittal in his statement on oath, this witness has sta ted on
oath that: |

woredter SYfafey Y1 Wi T A ey 7 e fasis @&t o
czies welyrerT g S wiald g T ?ﬁ: i Teh e TERT Y

& wreAT 371 1At ol ST W e o o e o e, wE A
TreRe, B FweRT TR TeRem et W wewfa arald 3’

L2

Sreprresery <y wiTY @ aitferer udierer oft fesaT ATl Srere
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vz st gu & v wfild % weed ¥ @ o erfer =l w
ererehaT Ty BT U 9715, Y, STET T 1 IV UL am.
% 16 T w1 S =T 31 w0 ST awi ven @ arfes
@‘ﬂf‘fyﬂ%ﬁr o ¥ 1 gaent 7 warse Wy wemar av uvwg W el W "L‘mﬁ
s Rrerfremers % 5-6 HrddEEAs”

46. The unacceptable and a lame excuse that this witness has given

above fs very funny in as much as when he had himself said that

he had only 5-6 spotless people in the University, what prevented
him from constituting the committee from these 5-6 spotless

people|and what made him induct Prof. Anil Kumar Verma and

others practically in all the committees by and large.

47.  AW-2, Shri Rahul Solanki, in his affidavit (paper no. 3/007 to

3/011, Annexure- B-1/1 to B-1/5) on oath, hag stated that as soon

as Prof, Ashok Mittal joined the Universitf, Y started corruption
and f01'5116d a-group of his own peoplein 1ely,. Prof. Anil Kumar
|

Verma,% Prof, P.K. Singh, Prof. Madu Pratap Singh, Dr. Arvind
',Mishra; Shri Hari Govind A al, Mr. B.D. Shukla and Prof.
Manoj Kumar Srivagh ?‘ who were given important
responsibilities of tl "*&lﬁmversity including affiliation department,
law department, b%}tmination department and degree department.
Out of which, Prof. Anil Kumar Verma had a charge sheet of
Vigilance Establishment to his credit. -

48.  The list of -the selected candidates and the approval of the
delinquent officer, Prof, Ashok Mittal is paper no. 38/3474 to

38/3546, Annexure- B-23/73, in which Prof. Mittal has not even

taken the pains to write ‘approved’ but has only signed it. This may

3 ]
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nof be termed ag illegal butitis a circumstances which the Inguy
nmsum defimitely wants to mention.

ALY RN

he Inquiry Committee also took notice of paper no. 90/8858 to

SN )
/8REGT, Annexure- o

admitted by the delinguent, who made an endorsement that these
papers.are not relevant to the matter of the present inquiry but stiil

the M(::miyy Committee looked into this paper and found ﬂ;i\“"

smprmcirmie

1%

nced scheme il nd 51

R
gue

m(;UMub were axmm | cﬂ mn the self-fi

est 1& um(,w were app ou tcad under the uu meu scheme. Papet

;

()@/‘*)8‘\‘3’ (/‘&mw‘"um» RB-32/2) 18 al.so nmogtmn which answers

the qm stion as to &ccmu W m Wh;ch rules cmri MWUMHOLM Jn,

mce( bdmmu appol mm':n S wew mada zmﬂ what are m

e

oui del nes ’f r appol ntmam In reply, the onidelings issued by th

U C C Were met 11 om,d \/nuca ihe dclmqucnt‘- ; that the

o 1i&umcs 18 suud Dy m, UGC cammt bt:..ﬁga_;n into consideration
tor mpoimment as guest faculty. Papdg¥No. 21/2380 (Annexure-

etter from the Supd “‘nd@né’ of Police addressed 10

B-

V?
L_u
2
\
\.J./
o

7z

the Registrar with me 1(,\ %m A‘lh \/en'm, Readm‘, Hi

Department be di E‘PC‘J‘ 4 1ppc’n n h* 3 o;’%e for recording of his

and m\k\% Vice Chancellor said that he is ignorant

nbouﬂ; ev yﬂ ing. Alihm ?1 ‘the ddmnuc* 1t officer said that some

| o’fﬂj‘e candida{es we Mu*ied and were not sele uu{ 101 *h.e pmi_

but we were unable to get the list of those sandidates who were not
appointed. .

50. The delinquent officer has admitted paper no. 03/051 to 03/105

(Annexure- B-5/1 to B- 5/54), so this paper can be easily read and

relied upoi. Paper no. 03/051 is the whole crux and the base of this
‘ Page 66 of 133
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’J issue In as much as the then Registrar AW-6, Shri Anjani Kumar
| Mishra had@ pomt-wise given a very detailed and exhaustive report
| | X

|
about the reasons why the selection could not be done in the way it

was going to be done but instead of considering the objections and
|

notes of the ;then Registrar, the delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal

who was in a very hurry wrote the following two notes, one after the

|
other on the same date:

“Proj. Anil i, Verma

\
P give me the financial viability of no. of teachers (guest fuculy)

remnmmmzdﬁed Jor teaching work department-wise. To-day only.”
Sd/-
Prof. Anil Mittal

- 07.01 1
“] \?’ewm’rw ‘ QO@

1. PL see the report of Prof. Anil Verma. “’3\ ’

dssue th;e letters to the I‘ECOJ@idﬂd puest  faculties
imwwdiwdy and report to me b}@m‘rw‘»}. ”
\§ Sd/-
gi;}\ “Prof. Anil Mittal
\3\3 07.01.2021

51, Inthis order initially, the order ran as follows:

“1ssue the letters to the recommended guest faculties by tomorrow

“and report by” were added later. Although, that would not make

much of difference but it wou uld definitely be a circumstance to

show that how hurriedly the work was done and the delinguent

officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal expected and directed the Registrar to

issue 103 letters within a day which the Registrar followed since
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he }had no other option. Here reverting back to the objections and
note written by the then Registrar, Shri Anjani Kumar Mishra who
nu—iide every attempt to stop these illegal appointments, and to help
he,‘ administration to make valid and legal appointments, his notes
and other comments were not given an ear to, and in fact were
mumd down that even not by the Vice Chancellor, Prof. Ashok
thtal himself but by Prof. Anil Kumar Verma. In each and every
ob'iecﬁon Prof. Anil Kumar Verma wrote passing remarks and i

bgc‘cuon ‘d’ written by the then Registrar on paper no. 03/052

(Aw nexure- B-5/2), he also took the liberty of writing ‘taken care’
]

but iwhen the selection was done, it was not taken care of at all. As

far as the objection ‘g’ written by the then Registrar, Shri Anjani

Kumar Mighra, in concerned, an incorrect endgrsement was made

by Pr of. Aml Kum’n‘\/elmd that the adversd ent was put on the

Wi

c,b Mf‘ Whu cas paper no, 165/1 2678.@3%11‘@\&&9'& B-39) says that
this advelusumem was never plxge{%gwebme wi ml 1 proves tl the

xR

mdmscmem ofPlo Anil Ku€nd® Verma as mcorrect bc,ca;L e the

delinquent officer hlmsel&@b said that the report of the University

that the advertiseme as not put on the website 1s correct. Thus,

all the attempts E?c then Registrar, Shri Anjani Kumar Mishra
| &

went in vain to get the appointment procedure in a legal and correct
procedural way, and finally, ignoring all the objections, the
delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal, made 103 illegal
appointments of guest faculties. Therefore, causing huge financial
loss to the University. Although, the delinquent officer, Prof.
Ashok Mittal, submitted before the Inquiry Committee that any

which ways 103 guest faculties would have been appointed who

Y
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would have been paid as those are being paid which wer
appointed by him . the finances would be the same. We are in utte

Al

t done wouit

disagreement of this argument because an illega

give the same resi itas a legal act, hence the il ew! act would b

_w usz cm‘mt bu 1C u,med

The me mbu s of the committee went through and watched and sav

A1l the video recording of all the Executive Council meetings held

during the tenure of the ¢ {elinquent officer, Prol. Ashok Mittal. We
also gave an anxious attention and found that what was beint

o

discussed was not at a \U1 beine recorded in the minutes and in fac
Prof. Mittal blamed the Executive Council’s member for no
pointing out that the minutes were incorrect Of wWere incomplete

Thus, Prof. Mittal has blamed the Finance Officer, Commitiet
o J e

M@mb@m, Registrar and all the » Execuy &&C@m&cﬁ%’@ megnler
for not pointing out the short comjmggin different wt

While going through the E&%ﬁve Council meeting datec
20.01.2021, we observed » one of the members (we are
abstaining ours tves {t, Nentioning the names) said thatt the Vice
Chancellor has ew ight to appoint guest lecturers directly by

just giving 0@ e list. Strange enough even if a single frest

appointment has to be made, the procedure as stated by us above
has to be strictly fotlowed.

We have given an anxious thought to this fact also that if
person has served the University for some years, he should have
the priority in appointment as guest lecturer. Thus, even i we think
that for the appointment of guest lecturer, the procedure appoin

for regular appointment is skipped even then at least it would
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|
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1

P .' L. ‘ ‘
expedient in the end of justice, 1o drop the dead logs out. The
|
working and overall assessment of the staff who was already
L , : A
working for some years in the working and who were appointed as

|

guest lecturer should definitely have been called for, which has not
|

bee d done in this case either. Thus, taking lhe bmade%t “lspc—:u Of

the matter into consideration, the appmniments of guest fa Luv{ltb

'Wm«mm:www s

ll‘egal because we have in mind that character mlls of the st

auhl appomtce should defmudy have been done. It is not that even

o

somqone who is employed earlier and his work is not up to the
i'n.ark% should have a right to be appointed as a guest lecturer.
Henée, the Inquiry Committee comes to the conclusion that the
delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal viokated all the rules,
1@,§Duhtmns punmp es of natural } ustnr&)@nspamncy and made

103 %'Hegal guest faculty appom%‘ illegal

rsity suffered huge financial

s constitutmg a

commﬂtce due to which the U
loss, and thus charge no. 0@1}(13 proved against the delinquent

officer, Prof. Ashok I\/I\ti}g
Tm&mgﬁs on Charge No. 02
\.)

The second Charge levied on the dehnquem officer, Prof. Ashok

Si'ﬂy

Mittal is that he got the Statute/Hand Book of the Univer
printed and prepared in his tenure, in which he committed financial
irregnlarity and made double payments, which caused financial
loss to the University.

The work of updating and printing of the Statute/Hand Book was

entrusted to a retired Deputy Registrar, Mr. Harish Chandra.

/ Page700f133
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§
Bpime going mto this aspect, the Inquiry Con
ec1fy that paper no. 104/9293 (5/325) (marked as Aﬂne_me B

| 13/6110 this Inquiry Report) which is admitted by the dehnquent
OUlC]Gl was received from the Office of the Chmceﬂcn somewhuc
in Ja“nualy, 2019 and this letter Lemmded the Vice Chanceﬂm in
J mulau 'y, 2019 that somewhere in 2017 directions were e issued fox.
) updatmg the Statute/Hand Book but even dftel a lapse of a year
mreomon were not followed. Again directions were issued to
upda“u, the Statute/Hmd Book. On this letter by the Chancellor,
there | isa note datod 16.01.2019 that the papers have already been
sent to Mr. Hf\mh Chandra meaning thereby that the matter was
heftdy entmsted to Mr. Harish Chandra in the beginning of the
year 2019. Now ‘what happens is that Mr. Harish Chandra kept
slecpmg over the matter, he was engaged on ar rarium ot Rs.
35000 per month but he taﬂed to justl -X\gg appointment and
hono[mnum M. Hansh Chancha was.d\y’émbex of the Executive
: Counul too and his services wer nded from tlme to time. On
13.04.2021, his service lS‘g%tended from 07.042021 to

06.10.2021 f01 S1X% mom]a-g}\
this matter 15 the - ¢ ti eet of the In chawe Education, AR and

1at is the most important feature in

initials of another oﬂlcels/oiﬁcmls Whl()h is addressed to the
RLOlSU"dI/VlCL, Chancellor which is being athched to this Inquiry

Repoit as (paper no. 104/93 19 to 104/9321, Annexure- B- 33/8 to

B-33/10). Thls note sheet says that mmally on 12.06.2018, Dr.

Harish C handra (retd. Deputy Registrar) was appointed for six
months  to updﬂte the Statute/Hand Book and for other
administrative work as OSD which was made cilectwc from

N
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25.05.2018. His tenure ended on 24.11.2018 and Dr. Harish
Chzﬁno‘im was paid honorarium for six months after that his services
were not extended. What happened to the updating of the

uime/Hand Book during this period is in the dark. However,

furt h er this note sheet states as follows:

%“QMH orefrer BT B TR SRl S O foRd ST ETel R AT

o} T AT & e ATt T STEae el SR ST Hen

‘i“..w_. Rreres oAy ST Gl ohy sen feier 01.10.2019 %
1 ST T TEAT-5 o Fufey o e U uiereett R ITera [y
Eaﬁ%ﬁaﬁ wrefer iRy e e fopar v foraw 1 1 Feen
e, wew et aftie, 2. . FeRr Hed, vee, s i qo
3. 31, B9 =, YarFige Srpatta it 9 R a5 9w
of forofy forar war & 5o e & fow er a0y =, darea
EREIRRICE @ 3fem g s e g§3‘fﬁ w3
ot P 3Ter A F‘Twi%’g!d%ﬂﬂ?{ <l LT el
e TR 21 e, e aree, e ee, wme uhe BT
STET ST T E e ey K T, WA Susherd e S0
Tl T yum 1977 s & 2019 a I
o TTETeT SR QN . Wid @1 e i v e €
WA BW A0 d e fererers sy g o et STl

A perusal of this note sheet makes it very clear that the persons
who prepared this note sheet presumed that it appeared that due to
being busy Dr. Harish Chandra could not have prepared the
Statute/Hand 'Bovok. It has further gone to the extent of sayng that
Dr., Harish Chandra has got the Statute/Hand Book updated and
spirally bound along with the C.D. with himself safely which will

be handed over after orders of payment would be passed. This

.

/ Page 72 of 133
¢S
oY% N/
0 fl W/




60.

condition precedent went all above the heads of the Inquiry
Committee members because if all was ready since 2019 what

evented Dr. Harish Chandra from submitting the same to the

=)

1
competent - authority of the University. Because his initial

appointment itself was for updating the Statute/Hand Book and
oizzhel*administrative work. This shows that purposely Dr. Harish
Cimndra in spite of completing the process withheld the
Sﬂatute/ﬂand Book just to receive extra and double payment.
We would also like to refer to the order passed by the delinquent
ofﬂcei of p'xymem of Rs. 50000 on the same date to Dr. Harish
].i handra in anticipation of the approval of the Finance Commitiee.
Vjilat Was»“the hurry of orders of payments? We fail to understand

why when the work was done 2019, why it Wawmhe d il 2020,

when on 14.09.2020 orders 101 dual pavme@ok Rs. 50000 WClC |

passed anoihel amount of Rs. 12100 ‘wzns demanded as pnntmﬂ

Chdl gEs. “This mattel was directed "{Se placed bei(ne thc ﬂnance i

Lomm]uee Who apploved the p@lent of Rs. 50000 + Rs 12100 to |

R

Dr. Hansh Chandra. \§ _
As far as the procedu&;é}gh:lopted in this matter that too cannot be

approved by- am(a . A comnﬁ‘tt@@ comprising of Assistant
Registrar (Admin), Assistant Registrar (Vice Chancellor’s Office)
and Superintendent (Publication) was constituted  but  this
committee just comp'leted some formalities in as much as the
commﬂtee did not bother to see thal the challans submitted had
OVGIWHUHO and printed Vikas Books Limited was struck off and
by hand Ravi Offset was written by hand without any initial. Even

later on, an application was moved that the payment be made to-

.




‘i
|
!
|
1

ol.

62.

Vikas Book Agencies although work was done by M/S Ravi Offset

| o : :
Printers, Agra. This shows the connivance how the quotations were

| . . .
sent. The committee would not hesitate to write a few word about

oo .
Agra in the mquiry. In as much as paper no. 104/9298 (5/330),

papggr no. 104/9300(5/332), paper no. 104/9309(5/340), paper no.

104/9311 (5/342) which is annexed as Annexure-B-13/11, B-
§3/}2’3_ﬂ B-13/21 and B-13/23 to this Inquiry Report, could not be
f;eacﬁ by any of the Inquiry Committee Member without spectacles,
\

Wiﬂ'!ﬁ spectacles and even with the aid of magnifying glasses.
Wlléll the draft of the Statute/Hand Book was updated, the prior
appf'oval of the Cha'ii_cel'lor was mandatory as envisaged u/s 50(4)
of Uttar Pradesh State Universities Act, 1973. These provisions run
as follows: ‘ O

1“50(4 ). Every new Statute or agj&l\z@n to a Statute or any
amendment or repeal of SZ‘atk%”,S'/zm’l be submitted to the

Chancellor who may T8 10 it or withhold his assent

therefrom or remit $ tg the Executive Council for firther
consideration.” ‘3\
We have not | N‘\}nght of the fact that according to paper no.

104/9312 (Annexure- B-33/1), the Executive Council in its

meeting dated 20.01.2021 at other item no. 02, released the
amended Statute/Hand Book bye-passing the Chancellor because
this could only have been done b‘yuthé Executive Council, if the
Chancellor would have remitted the matter to the Executive
Council. The decision of the Executive Council taken in its

meeting dated 20.01.1021 at other item no. 02 runs as follows:

7 “ [ -
/ a 4 of 133
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65.

60.

STRTE GreETerd, Sono |

“2 ﬁ%ﬁ%lm 1 yem GRiAETE! (Fzrsi Sfcztufe) % W%Td :
m*mwamm%fmaa%éwﬁﬁﬁmﬁmwmﬁﬁamﬁﬁ%
wﬁwww 20 o w7E foraT TR €l
frofer: ‘ﬂ?fflf(@? s g7 Al © STHIE JaT fee T

Firstly, the so called committee did not bother to see whether the

quemmons were 1ecewcd were n mdu or not. There was any

regis ianon no., HAN No PAN No or GSTIN No. efc. on the

quOt&UQllS and cutting and m telpolatlons on ‘tbu quomuons Addb(a

fuel to fiire M
Comi mg to the oral evidence in this regard, AW-1, Dr. Arun Kumar
Dixit has- stated that the provisions of Section 50(4) of Uttar
Pu'adesh State ‘Universities Act, 1973 were not adhered to and
although the Deputy Reglsl ar (Retd.) was depu’ted op payment of
Rs 35000 per month for prepar ation of bmmte/ H%%ok He was
paid an addnloml sum of Rs. SOOOO/ for thm\gs'f

Having ueﬂdld to the statement of the d.&muem officer DW—&

prof. Ashok Mittal, he has tried to t@\g\m matter and said that in
his tenure, no Hand Book/Sta as prepared or printed but he
only got the first Stamte/H?~§ k updated. He has further stated
that everything is writt } the comments dated 10.09.2020 (paper
no. 104/9319 to 104/9321, Annexure- B-33/8 to B-33/10) which

we have already mfeued to above.

The statement of this witness in this regar d would be very relevant
to clarify the matter. In para 48 of the statement of the witness AW-
). Prof. Ashok Mittal on oath, has stated the following version:

woef  gerald FRT ST0 shomr = FrgfEererd @l
wﬁ@mw% T averee fesdr S w 3= SITEEE TS WATET
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ST T ?‘ﬂ%&'rﬁ! = Wer waTa foh Ae o orerrerar A st el
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o7.

Tlguilty ]Sﬁying extra amount to the Dr. Harish Chandra because ]

68.

69.

Sl T B I8 e 9 e e oft ey ww 2
W T TEF 8 o Rt w7 werar wr ot sww -
HIEHT GeT-01 FT T BT G weT o e 31w iy
Terat & ory gearer 7T §7)

; Approval of an illegal Act involving financial irregularity by 1

- Executive Council or the Finance Committee will not regulari

P s i

Committees were working will also be discussed later but here ¢,

Inquiry Committee concludes that Prof. Ashok Mittal is fou

Sl

was already being paid honorarium of Rs. 35000 per month fi

— i,

updating the Statute/Hand Book and this Ch%e No. 02 again

R & "
C)O

=
| Findings on Chm‘g‘@ 03

Charge No. 03 has been fran

Prof. Ashok Mittal stands pfoved.

G0 the effect that the delinguen
officer, Prof. Ashok Mitt %Iaointed Mr. Neeraj Goyal illegall
and when pressurize‘nge removed Mr. Neeraj Goyal. Th
Advocate Who W a\;{.}i‘éokmg after the case of Neeraj Goya

previously wa's"r%noved and an Advocate of his own choice was

appointed to give benefit to Mr. Neeraj Goyal, besides, he alsc

“appointed many people who had completed their official age of

superannuation and caused financial loss to the‘University.
First of all, the Jjuatter of appo:intnﬁent of Mr. Neeraj ,GoyaL who 18
the son of a retired employee of Dr. Bhimrao Ambedkar
University, Agra, as is evident from record, will be taken up. A

”

/
N
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A
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1‘@1):011‘1‘. dated 09.02.2021 which 1s paper 1}0._'70'/5885 (Annexure-

53/34%), admitted by the delinquent officer says that in compliance

of ii*l;he order of the High Court and the Government orders, the
i'n“fjormation to this effect may be gathered whether there was a post
sancﬂoned for Mr. Neeraj Goyal. Now, on this bye-passing all the
semor and experienced Advocates, the legal advice of Shri Hari
Goi\/md Agarwal was sought about whom the Inguiry Committee
ha%i stated earlier. Again, here the Registrar in his report dated
08 04 2021, came to the rescue of the University but the benefit of
1l w report was not taken and was b1 ushed away categorically. The
hen Registrar initially pomt@d out that he was bye-passed in this
process, b@COHdLy, he syllabus in which the proposed appointment
of Mr. Neeraj Goyal had to be made, thirdly, thg financial viability
by the Finance Officer and the report of téectjon committee
Which would entitle him to work as @ uter Operator. In this

,a@%‘

emld Plo[ Ashok Mittal has

o

- he did everything in.a

mmed manner fo ay id cmﬂe@

R

In the meeting when the E tive Councﬂ was demdmg the matter
of Mr. Neeraj GO}/T};KI was specifically pointed out by the
Registrar that M Q%emj Goyal was working from 2004 to 2011

on coniractual basis. After 2011, what transpired nobody knew, as

it was not on record, whether he was dismissed from service, he
left the service himself, and how his services were discontinued
after 2011. Now, what happens is that in 2016, an application was
moved direct before the Executive Council through some Seth
Padam seeking appointment. The Registrar pointed out that since

the file of Mr. Neeraj Goyal is missing and there is no post of

BT

Tepfor .
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1(13ga1d1110 Mr. Neeraj Goyal may be passed fter k g
ccoum the aforesaid circumstances. The delinquent officer, PlOf
}}Shok Mittal himself filed a bundle of documents being: 154/ ] ’7564 .
m 154/12571 (Annexure- B- 44,,/11 to B-44/7) which besides othes
doc,uments comams the report of one Sri Arvind Mishra addressed
1() the VICG Chancellor, this report is dated O1. 06.2019, which says
‘ﬂ}at when already the Executive Council, which is the highest body
o‘lf the University has approved the appointment of Mr. Neeraj, then

1
thereis no.legal bar in appointment of Mr. Neeraj Goyal as

Computer Operator. But, the delinquent officer was t00 desperate
abom the appointment of Mr. Neeraj Goyal for the reason best
known to him that he again brought the nQte addressed to him,

Regisu ar and Assistant Registrar. We faf understand why the

delmquem officer was interested t Qhese papers whlch were

gomg against him. -.3\?“
A ‘perusal of the shtcmem@: delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok
Mittal - smtes that s \nsQ?‘buvatlon were written by the then

R(,glstnr in the I of Mr. Neeraj Goyal. After conmdunm

ﬂ)OSL observa \KQB the Executive Council unanimously took the

decision that Mr. Neeraj Goyal be apponnted but there was a
suggestion of some of the membels that before giving appointment

to him, he may be asked to withdraw his writ. What happened

about the suggestion is unknown, because everything is silent on
this pomt in the minutes. Hence, the decision of Executive Couneil

becomes a nullity as withdrawing of the writ was condxtlon

precedent for his employment.

~



E in the University and the Vice Chcmcd

72. Jn this case, we have noticed thai even thc delmquent officer, Pro

AShOk Mittal has said during the Executive Council meeting the

"Ajle got the -duplicate records prepared of many teachers and th

Lgmcess was still going on. We fail to understand in all our wits

r«vhethe}? this is the pi'ocedm'e to be adopted by a Vice Chancellos

si any record is lost. The normal procedure in case of loss of an
sz‘ecord would be firstly reporting of loss, secondly, reconstructios
‘ (pf the file or documents, whatevu the case 1s, and thirdly
1:nst1tutmg an enquiry to fix the liability of loss of records. We an
sihocked to see that Agra University is working in its own way an

110 procedure for anything 1s bemg adapicd in as much as recor

is being lost, no one JS lCSpODSIbl(i for loss ofxecoza no action 1

being taken 101 any loss of record and thn%‘am peacefully going

sleeping over all the

: 1
ma, tters peacefully.

i 73. thhou.t knowing the reason r. Neeraj Goyal left service

how could he be appointe omputer Operator, whereas the
was no such post dnd\ﬁg‘pmwom y from 2004 to 2011, he was

workmg as Data Elttsy Operator. We would alse like to poimnt ou!

{ that one whq&&s equity must to do equity and must come witk

clean hands but Prof. Ashok Mittal has not done so, he is blowing

hot and cold.

| 74.  Paperno. 70/5887 (Annexure- B-30/3) also makes it clear that the

delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal was so desperate that he
directed his P.A. to issue the appointment letter to Mr. Neeraj
Goyal. Prof. Ashok Mittal has said that he was compelled to do so,

because of the urgency but he did not bother to take action against

: e PETITE
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75.

76.

i
the officials who had refused to comply by his orders which he
|

should have, so that the other employees would have thought twice

before disobeyiﬁg him.

i, L ) .
There is nothing on record to show the transparency of the

mewm

appomtmem of Shri- Neelaj Goyal. In this case also, no selection

pmcess or adveltlsemcnt was made. Everyone is unaware of his

quahﬁcatwns and the panel Advocate was chmced for reasons best

l\nown to the delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mutal In this lwcud,
Prot.iAshok Mxttal has said that Shri Gagan Mehta did not inform
him ﬁmat is why he was replaced by Shri Vivek Rai Advocate. This
is a vague statement. |

The delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal has said that the matter
of Mr. Neeraj Goyal was being 1ooked by Mf\Gagan Mehta
Ad.vqcate, who took two or three dates to { Q’\uanveq but this
infon!nation was not given to the Vi Ghancel}or. If at all,
.infon%nation was given to the legal dgg’é‘tmem or Registrar, he does
not ki;now. Well, we think 'tha@l information is given in the
office only and not dirécﬂy@e Vice Chancellor. When Shri Hari
Govind Agarwal, AW-3owas examined in this regard, he said that
he did not rememl@\«vhether he advised the Vice Chancellor to
replace Mr. Gagan Mehta by Mr. Vivek Rai. But, the delinquent
officer in his statement has said that in the office note there is no
mention of the carelessness and slow pace of the work of Mr.
Gagan Mehta. But, Assistant Registrar, Mr. Ajay Gautam and
Legaﬁ Advisor, Shri Hari Govind Agarwal has apprised him about
this fact orally. The delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal could

not find out even a single incident where Mr. Gagan Mehta
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~




Advocate did not c'omply with the oral or written direction issued

to him.

77 Mr. Aj ay Kumar Gautam, DW-3, who is the witness of the
delinquént offiéer Prof. Ashok Mittal, has also said that:
aﬁ iy e 3 Ty O TR @t 3 STl T A FEAIER T
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78.  Thus, ﬂlb dehnquent officer has been kept on passnw ‘blanket

i

mdus ﬂn ouvhout his tenure in pr acucallv '111 the matters

79. In ‘Lhm m’xttel ’11‘%0 all the notnws and exphnaﬁom of the then

Reuxun were done thL Ovemﬂed and.orders for appointment

were leLlGd P] 01 Ashok Mmal has submitted that smcc the matter

~.




become fmgl. It appears that the bone of contention between the

i

Registrar and. the Vice Chancellor here was -about the illegal

appointment of Mr. Neeraj Goyal because while watch‘ing thé
video Iﬁ:COl“?ChDg of the Executive Council dated 20.01.2021, we
found that téhis matter of Mr. Neeraj Goyal was not iﬁ the original
agenda of J[l%l@ meeting of Executive Council dated 20.01.202 ﬁi; but
a supp’iemeéntary minutes of the meeting of Executive Council
dated 20.0%}_.2021 was ‘prepared. The supplementéry minutes
appeared tog be lengthier than the original minutes and agenda, mn
which the Executive Council decided that appointment be given 0
M. Neemj% Goyal as Computer Operatof in the self-financed
schemé\, ,aftér seeing his eligibility. These minutes further say that
there is no file or record available in the University &y which u
could be déacid‘e_d’as to on which post Shii‘i N»@ Goyal was
appointed. 'iéBeing,apprised of this fact, ﬂl@,}ég%:utivé Council

passed 01‘016%5 for the appointment of Mr.J¥&eraj Goyal. Now, this

is the fi.rst“c%se where the Inquiry C 1@1 tee has experienced and
seen the appomtment of a perso\lngi hout any paper, without any
1‘e<:ommendatioﬂ, ‘wi.thOut alg&'edentials;.w'ithout examining any
credibility by 1116Exc—:p%&%‘ Council. Again here the Registrar
raised his voice which was silenced and orders were passed
otherwise, this was the reason why the Registrar failed to sign the
minutes of the Executive Council meeting dated 20.01 2021 due to
which he had to face a lot of criticism in as much as a note was
written by ﬂ)e Vice Chancellor, Prof. Ashok Mittal on 15.04.202 ]
to the Acting Registrar that the Registrar’s counter note is
demgato@, he is not competent'to question or 1‘aise"ﬁnger on the

N
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\
dec LS;lDﬂ idkm by the Executive Council in the capacity of
dppo‘mmjff authority. We agree that the Registrar cannot raise a
imfmr or questions the findings or decision of the Executive
C 0111; il but the procedure in which this matter was dealt with is
not appxecmble In fact, we would not be hesitant to say that S0
many points were bloUOht out in the EXLCL{UV@ Council meeting
dmd 20.01 2021 but ‘what was reduced to Wntmc was not i
consonancc- with what actually happened during the meetme, as 1s
ewdemﬁ from a perusal of the video recording of the meeting dated
20. 01 7021 Thus there are many minutes of the meeting of the
Lxecu‘uve Counul held on 20.01.2021. The first minutes , paper no.

177/12681 0 12693 (Annexure-B-42/1 to B-42/13 ) was signed

by both the then Registrar and Vice Chancellor, Px shok Mittal
on 09’ 03.2021 i.e after a lapse of about one@@lh 20 days. The
ongmai minute of 20.01.2021 was mi§¥ing and the Inquiry
«Conmexttge left no stone unturned 111®g o procufe the original
minutes which could not be trac the sitting of the committee
ywaq at Lucknow. Evenmal.%Q/vhen the sitting of the Inquiry
Committee was at Agra ﬂ@.i e erring officials were summoned by
the Committee and gg\questmns about the original minutes, the
delinquent otflcer, Prof. Ashok Mittal produced the original
minutes at once which he said hek brought from his chamber’s
EMWGJL The same was the position with the paper no. 177/12694
t0 177/12703 (Annexure- B-42/14 to B-42/24) which is the draft

minutes prepared by the Registrar, the original of which was
_produéed by the delinquent officer himself. All these proceedings

can be verified from the video recording of the enquiry held at

N




80.

Agrav.v‘Again_ﬂ another minutes of the meeting dated 20.0] 2021w
prepared and signed by Prof. Ashok Mittal, the Registrar ai
members of the Executive Council, this was Just done for the sal
of overdoing things because things were not in order, hence, the:
types of Iixecutive Council’s meeting and proceedings cann

dtlfy and-approve, the illegal acts of the Vice Chancellor, Pro

Ashok Mlual We could get no explan'nlon as to why the origin:

i

Jml_nuteswew lying in the drawer of the Vice Chancellor and ho

: Prof. Ashok Mittal, delinquent officer, whose work has been seize

chm, to know that minutes and draft of the Executive Counc
aneuimg dated 20.01.2021 are lying in the drawer of the chambe
ot the V1C6 Ch'mcellm Hence, this conclides the appomtment o
Mr. Neeraj(xoyal was illegal and against law.

As far as the appoumnen of people who lé&ossedihe age o

S:upelannuatlon 1S concerned, a list wa éived from-the office
’iong with bir th date which is papefﬁb 176/. }?670 (}Mmcmr
E 47/1) in this although the d @@ucnt officer has not admittec

he date of bnth but this is {I§ecmd of the University submitted

by the In-Charge, Admn%s.%mﬂon which says that date of birth of

Shri S.D. Pahwcﬂ@ to VICC_ Chancellor is 29,07,1951, Dr.
Harish Cl andra, 15 07. 1951 Shri_ Hari  Govind = Agarwal,
OZ 01, 1955 vaeen Kumal Agax wal, Assistant OSD, 19.09.1959, _
Anoop Kumar Srivastava, Assistant OSD, 23. 08 1%0W8hu

e

Chandm Shekl har Ashtl am 15 08 1960 Shri Pwmod Kumar

Agcuwal 102.06. 1958 Shu Plamod Kumal Sharma, 03, 10 1958,
Qhu Shmlcndla Jauhari, 01.07.1960 and Shri Shiv Kumm Mishra,

25.02.]901. The honorarium of all the above memioned person

~
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ranged from Rs. 35000 to Rs. 12000 per month. The Inquiry
Committee noticed that Mr. Praveen Kumar Agarwal, Retd.
Superintendent and - -Anoop  Kumar Srivastava, ~ Retd.

bupenmendem both retired from the same post. and both were

posted as Adcht;ondl OSD but the honorarium of both diff@l ed by
Rs. SOOO/ nas much as Praveen Kumn' Agarwal was getting RS.
30000/~ pm momh and Mr. Anoop Kumar Srivastava was getting
Rs. ’75000/ per month, although, the appointment of Mr. Anoop
Kumar SUVdst’wa from 02.09.2020 whereas the appointment of
Shri Pl’ween Kumar Aﬁcuwal was from 21. (}7 2018. Dehmlf‘i
prices would have hlked up in 2020 but to lhe utter sur prise of the
Inquiry Commitcee, the person appomted later was paid lesser
which againfaises an eyebfoxy on the working of the delinquent

officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal. The Inquiry Committ uld not like

\
to be very tcchmml in this Leoald but appQl 1 ¢ a huge army 10,

\ o,
work, thout monnm ing the work WagH g’ﬁ. very., good and wise

‘» e, ety
e
[

and sunsﬂ)lc btep on the part.of il

n Vice Chancellor, Prof.

A‘hok Ml'tt'—ﬂ because the Uni
“of s0 mcmy Advocates for téa

sor

ity W:mwahe’ldy having a pmel

assistance. . ‘ _
Is' there dnythmg g\}k\}umd to show that after every initial
appointment of" these so called helping hands to the c‘ﬁelinque.nt-
officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal, was their work analyzed or assessed
whether they necdud memlon or not? Although, we agree that
experience hands are "dways assets for the University but the youn g
generation also needs to be trained to replace the el deﬂy ones, The

delinquent ‘of'tlcm Prof. Ashok Mittal was never hesitant in
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flppmﬁtmg people directly without any 1ecommendmon and

Wl.th()m seeing their credentials and academic records.

!
82, Pwper{‘no. 09/839 (Annexure- B-15/14) shows that Shri Shailendra

|
Paliwal, retired District Judge, was ’Lppomtea on the same

|

cOlldlUOﬂS a% that of Late Dr. Harish Chandra. Thus Shri

Q,h“ul@ndm Dutt Pahwﬂ wppeals to be working till 11.08.2021 and

i AT

I z.g,ﬁt‘h@,h&g;mQ&J.meue.awt

s

The dc,hnquem 0111(,61 me Asho< Mmal Could not show any,

e

Jubuﬁcatmn or V”Lhd reason for "Lppomtment of these 09 people ,

Wlnch have been ‘shown in ]76/ 12670 (Anmmuu‘e— B/M/};)

A oA

w»««-—'wwm oA

3. What more 1S needed then the admission of the. dehnquem officer

himself, who has very specifically admitted and put the rope

himself around his neck by saying that: &
e 3 A2 7 gl 9 3Rt 72 2
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Thus, when the delinquent officer inspite of having the knowledge
that it is the Finance Committee, who finally decides the financial
matters after which the matter is sent to the Executive Councll,

failed to adhere to this procedure and admitted that he committed

N
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a mistake in not doing so and tried to shift his liability on the
Fmance Commlttee and Finance Officer stating that afterwards

neither the I*mdncu Committee informed nor took his approval and

besides it being the duty of the Finance Officer to inform him, who
did not mfo%;rm. him.

The Inquir;gl Committee watched and saw the video recording of
the Lxccmwe Council meeting dated 20.01.2021, which is paper

no. 123/1 1384 (Aﬂmexme— B-49/90). A perusal ofthe minutes of

this m,eeti;1g shows that the delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal
has denied %i‘tem no. 5 to 14, if these minutes were different from
words trar Spned in the mceungf,, then why dhd the delinquent
officer at all sign the minutes. As said earlier, we have watched th

video recordmc in which in the matter of Prof. Lav Kush @fishra,
the Commﬂlee was constituted only consisting of . Ajay

Taneja, Prol Mano; Srivastava and Dr. S.P. S&g but in the

d Sri” Krishna

minutes he name of Director ex—offm
Door dhushan Centm ‘has also been inclulell which is not in the

vid.eoy a,nd which was not at all dec@ n the Executive Council

meeting. ‘ 3\

To our utter smpnse Wl}%\)@ heard the v1deo recording of

meeting of Executive Councﬂ held on 20.01. 7021 the emergency

i e et

meeting, the cybcr cell audm ‘was played i t the meeting but this

does not find place in me minutes of meeting.
Perusal of papér, no. 177/12694 te 177/12703(Annexure- B-42/14

to B-42/23) whose original was presented by the delinquent
officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal, this has certain correction, but the

correction are not in consonance with what was actually decided
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s rx»“"““

by the Executive Council. We even nouccd that in the draj
mmutes the dehnquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal made all th
; corrections and additions in his own handwuuno What prevente

the delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mmal to do this Wlﬂl all th

minutes because practically all the minutes differed from al

=t

ranspired during the Executive Council meeting and it can safel’

be szud 1hat the dehnquem officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal I ad 1

admlmstl 'mve conhol over anything. The minutes Wele differen
|

TS

from Wh'lt was ba]d or decided in the Executive Council muetmg

héence, they have no force. This fact has also been said by ont

l?xecutive Council member Mr. Hem Prakash that the minutes dc
not tally with thevproceedings of the Executive Council meeting.
An f—xpplication bearing paper. no. 154/12865 &154/1256¢
(Annmure~ B-44/1 to B-44/2) was mgq . y the delinquen

0[ fficer beiole the Inquiry Commlue ut in all its wisdom, the

commu’[ee tculed to a inemate wiRPNat a]l such app!ic" tion was
movcd and what was the p e to move quch an applicatior
before the connmttee exc U?o‘brmg into light the name of Sr
Arvind Mlshla who | &&)ﬂnng to do with this enquiry. We would
like to quou, QLH}Q of this application which goes to say that
some of the documents filed by the complainant, Dr. Arun Kumar
Dixii, relate to Sr1 Arvind Mishra who was appointed in 2017 as
Coordinator, Law by the ‘then Vice Chancellor and his

remuneration was also fixed by the then Vice Chancellor. Further,

he has ~said thz}i the scope and jurisdiction of this Inquiry
Committee is limited to charges as framed in the Charge Sheet
dated 25.08.2021. No charge has been framed against Sri Arvind

~ Page830f133
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M%hm nor there 1s mentlon of any chflrge in the mee Shect

\ Sll‘lllal to the allegation made by Dr. Arun Kumr Dlet Advocate
Hence, the Inquiry Committee has no jurisdiction to enquiré mto
ﬂ]E‘ aﬂeoatioh in the application dated 30.09.2021. Since, vn_o
payments have been made by the Univer suy to Sri Mishra who 1s

currently available in Agra and is retained by the Umvemty but

thé complainam has not 1}1enti0n his name as a witness nor he has
be E?n summoned by the Enquiry Committee for evidence as 2
WJL1 tness that it is settled prmmple of law that no allegation or charge
ag,amst any person can be the subject matter of a final enquny in
f[he absence of the concemed person. Fulthel the delinquent officer
has requested that smtable orders-may be pdssed We think that the
de lmquent offxcm Prof. Ashok Mittal is achnfr as an Advocate cmd
uymg to slneld Mr A1v111d Mishra about m the lnquuy
Commxﬂee h’\d not dlscussed anything ug’g\@r%: d ehnquent offic
hmllbelf ﬂled papers relating to Mr, @Vﬂd Mishra. We do not
undc1 stand why this was done by delinquent officer as neither

: E or he was [acmg any enquiry, n

Mr. Arvind Mlshra was char,
fact, in the whole enquitysk ‘name did not appear in the report but
finally we ii‘e comp to write the above paragraph because the

dehnquent officer has moved 1he mpphcatlon to protect Mr. Arvind

Mishra which was to be decided by the Inquiry Committee and

could not be left untouched. Why this Committee would have at all

be concerned with Mr. Arvind Mishra. As far as non-summoning
of Mr. Arvind Mishra by the complainant or Imquuy Committee is
conccmed this is the prerogative of the Inquiry Committee and if

the dehnqvem Officer thought that the dpp@dl ance of Mr. Arvind
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ham\ from summonmu Mr.

\
l
\
|

Mishra as witness

l

exonemted on the statement of Mr.
Arvind Mishra as defence witness

was of such importance a 'md if he oould‘be

Arvind Mishra, what preventud »

spedmﬂy when he had summoned as many as seven defence

‘
Witn',\esses all working in the University.
Ano*ither work of overdoing by Prof. Ashok Mittal is presenting
/ 12446 to 140/12451 (Amune\mm— B-46/1 to B-46/2)

140/12446, 140/12447 and 140/12448 were

papei’r no. 140

out of these paper no.

presémed through the Presenting Officer with the office no. and
|

this \endorSement of presematlon through the Presenting Officer

was | mwde by Sri Hari Mohan Saxena Advocate, which the

shok Mittal admitted., Srt Hari Mohan

Saxena Advocate 18 one who was proposed by Pro §As hok Mittal

down by the

dehnquent 0fhce1 Prof. A

|
to Cross examine the witnesses Whlch was m

hlquiry Committee. : ...l\ .
“hm on the basis of what has been & zged above, the Inquiry
‘1 hent of Mr. Neeraj Cxoyal

ta was replaced by Mr. Vivek Rai

Commlttee concludes that the apR0

illegal and Advocate ngan

“Advocate without any Teasoh and also that L1n~xlecessa1y qddntwmi

\”handq mentlonud nkﬁk'ﬁ)aper no.

were selcctcd and posted haph'lzndly wnhout any pmcedme

s T

{here cby swddlmg the Umvusﬂy wnh payments of ho

to which the Umvemny suﬁeu,d glmt financial losses. Tlms, the

hok Mittal is found gul Ity of charge no.

nor 'mum due

delinquent officer, Prof. As

0




90.

Findings on Charge No. 4.

Cha"rge No. 04 framed agamst the delinquent officer is that he did

]n . . P - . .
- not 'iollow covid-19 protocol and rules and guxdeimes issued by the

l
government from time to time, was not vigilant in his duties and

mellvfom violated the provisions of UP Pubhc Health and
Fpldemlc Disease Control Act, 2020. Meeting lhTS charge, the
dehnquem officer has emphatically denied this charge, and has
pccmcany stated that he did not violate the guidelines of covid-
19, in fact, When he tested covid-19 positive, he isolated himselfin
his’ z}temdemml house and his quarantine pemod ended when he

test@cl negative. In this regard, his evidence on oath has to be taken

into account, initially, as this is settled that if .any fact is admitted

by the delmquent officer, it will not require ’111&1‘001’: In this
con‘tr,xt ﬂ\e st'ﬁtemem of the -delinquent 0""@ ndmely, Prof.

Ashok Mittal (p’xpel no. 172/12636 to 4&2 12649 and further
'73)12650 to' 173/12667, marked aq(ﬂlw nexure- A-20/1 to A-

2@/32) would be very zmpmtant a@useful to decide this charge.

In his examination-in- chne\}gm witness has stated that he
complied with all the @@ tion of the State and isolated and
quamntmed111111361@\}76 03.2021to 11. 04 2021. He has further
stated that on 11 04 2021, he started a temporfuy vacunaﬂon
center in JP Audﬂonum in “which about 400- 600 people
vaccinated daily and, eventually, this center was converted 1nto a
pel manem V’ICCMldUOH center. He has further gone to state that he
was 1101; interrogated by any g Uovemmn,m ser th or ofhcmi and he

can not be held guilty on the basis of any news published in the
. ;

N
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|
|
|
newspaper because 1t would be against the principles of natura
| . -

ju ustice. Coming to the cross-examination of this witness, we havi
io keep in mind that this witness had been working as Vic

(,uanceﬂm of Dr. Bhimrao Ambedkar University, Agra anc

«:‘@finltely belongs to the cream society and to the intellectual anc

|
cf,ducated person. This witness was subjected to cross- s-examinatior

dcademician class of the society, and 1s a well read and wel

‘by the Inquiry Committee, who keeping in mind the admissibility
o;f the copies of the news published in the newspaper, asked thi

witness certain quesﬁous who admitted that on 18" June, 2021, he

was not using a mask zmd even in the meeting dated 11" June

2021, he was not masked. He has admitted that as per paper no

124/1 2163 (Amnemam— B-58/1), he has magked himself but since

n was a surgical mask, it fell down, @ if this statement i
wnoud there is something moxcu{@hm that this witness has
said. This witness has admit peg no. 124/12177 (Annexure-
M@) This document ?;md by Prof. Ashok Mittal, it it is a
copy of the office ord Med 01.04.2021. On this date, admittedly.
Prof. Ashok Mif' as isolated, while he has signed this document

on 03.04.2 *é “during his Seriod of isolation. “Definitely, some
D

OfﬁCldl/OﬂiClem{lbl have gone o him phys;caﬂy to obtﬂm h's

wmml md he must hwe 1eiumed th(, file aitu signing 1*

LoeR—" R . A

physmﬂy to qom@one _Besides this, Prof. Mnm} has also admitted

paper no. 124/ 12178 (which is annexed as Anmxuw— B-58/16 to

his report). From the perusal of this document, it is clear that this
was also physically handled by Prof. Ashok Mittal. This document

is copy of a letter which he has marked to Assistant Registrar




(Admin) on 27.03.2021 and wrote on it “PL appoint Prof. U.N.

~
N J/J

whkila as coordinator”. This goes to show that this was also

physically handled by him during his isolation period. He has also
specilically admitted that 19" March, 2021 too, he did not wear a
mask, no doubt, this was not his isolation period, but this was the
period when covid-19 was in full swing in the nation and the
government had ah“ady ordered very strict implementation of the
guidehnes and pmioool of covid-19. It has been the version of Prof.

Ashok Mittal that the newspaper people have been falsely
publishing his photographs and defaming him. When he was
questioned on this point, he said that the editor of Amar Bharat:
Newspaper is the friend of Dr. Arun Kumar Dixit. This explanation

o

s not acceptable and plausible because if the delinquent offi
al all felt defame and had felt that false news is bei@@ashed

was no reason at all not to brin culprits to

NS

against him, there

boolk.

01,  Inthis regard, the statement of AW-1, the i omplainant, being
paper no. 134/12276 to 134/12286 apndN$7/12577 to 157/12579
(which is annexed as Annexure- @ﬂ to A-7/14 to this Inquiry
Report) can also be looked 1nt \%115 witness has stated on oath
that the dn,llnqucnt ofncel flouted Ulb plotocol and guidelines
issued by the State f01 covid-19, due Lo Whlch he sent a UDle!c;likl |
{o the Ci ief Minister. [he Chlef Mnnstel spm th@ cbm; Mmf to 30

’rol!owmgm
S.S.P.
92 1ght to me nome of 1hc Inquiry Commluee ﬂm it was

nly the Government who could look into this matter and Dr. Arun
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Kumar Dixit was no one to look into this matter. The Inquiry
- Committee would like to refer to the definition of social distancing
mentioned Section 2(1)(1{) of the UP Public Health and Epidem:ic
Disease Control Act, 202@ which was inducted in the Act by means
“of amendment which runs as follows:

“(n) ‘Social distancin o' means /ceeping such physical

(/zs/cmcc Jrom other persons as the State Authority or as

the case may be, the District Authority may by m’e'
direct or as may be prescribed under epidemic control
regulations made under section 4.”

With this definition in mind even as a lay man, one can understand

“that an infected person had to maintain the requisite distance from

another person. The delinquent officer, who was tested ¢

positive at one point of time did not have the courag

even examined on mth by the Commluce to say l’ivﬁiai were the

n—

circumstances, mgency and compe]lmg “citefmstances which

Vumpc lpd hnn lo physlml deal wuhv file wabs orders because

when thu Inquny Commmce emn‘l‘{ the papel gned and

lmndled by the dchﬁquem ofﬁce\%uno hls quarantme peuod

& .
rtance thal heavens would fall, i

‘i:lﬁfzﬁtgﬁnment ofﬁcér Wbuidiiiot have dealt with and handled the
papers. At that point of time, in as much as paper no. 124/12177

(Annexure- B-58/15) is just an office order which had to be issued

by the Registrar, in fact, there was no necessity of signature of Prof.
Ashok Mittal on this paper which he signed on 03.04.2021 during
his isolation period. For the sake of repetition, we would say that

the delinquent officer failed to utter a word also what compelled

N
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him to sion paper no. 124/12177 (Annexuye- o B-58/15) while he
< i ¥

was i isolation

The Inguiry Co T?ﬁ‘du_, would also like to refer to puper no.

TO/5687 (Annexure- B-30/3 ) which has been admitted by the

delinquent officer. This'relates to the file of Neeraj Goyal. The

Y

fngquiry Commiltee found it very strange when the note shee tofthe
office wae written on 17.02.2021 and it was kept pending tii

05.04.2021 and on the fine morning of 05.04.2021, we don’t know

what stimulated Prof. Ashok Mittal to pass the following order:

“Inlight of the decision of E.C. dated 20.01.2021 and Hon 'ble
High Court order dated 19.02.202 1. Pl issue the appointment
letier {0 Mr. Neeraj Goyal and do the needful.”

Wwe could also not in all oup-N¥dom try to find out the

it

Feason as to ‘wy Prof. Ashok Mi who was in quarantine at his

ouse, uunl i not ciciegate iu’g\ !mc {0 some u,wom» ble officers

: J /stuyv

of th , he h% nmmy xuch yfficers o pm his
own Ve on. Q;‘E :

-~

Al il e oncv \Q‘x this Actare Comszab‘s Pd?@” baile

o

the i m@gwnluec can noi 10se swh o£ ﬂu, x’z.c ‘

respons Sible 17en AW} Ux Awn I\umm D;(i Ad‘f@f“me,

stead o If 1.uix;.m§_{ law in his hands, 1Lporf@d tﬂe ﬂmtiexj to the C hu:f

i

o

;m w m i ' @k care of the matter a d Mm‘ m‘mf ul. Copy 0'

the Lt(:u’ngﬂmm made hy D; Amn Kum'u Dx 1S

F07/9998 (whi h is ¢ annexed as Anpexure- T"‘*’ ’"‘“’/ﬁ to this lnquiry

Mhus, on the basis of what has heen stated and discussed above,

this Inquiry Committec comes io the conclusion that Charge No.

A Pa{u_ a6 of 133
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Findings on Charge No. 005

re

v

Charge No. 05 has been framed to the effect that whether Shri Havi

o

,;&\ 11

Govind Agarwal was close to/related to Prof. Ashok Mitial and he
was appointed without any justification as Legal Advisor in the
University, saddling the University with undue financial liabilities.
Here, although Shri Hari Govind Agarwal was not chosen by
Prof. Ashole Mittal as a witness but the Inguiry Committee
choose to examine Shyri Hari Govind ﬁ%@'wzaﬁ as a witness fo

bring out the truth and to separ aﬂ*(s@hza'ﬂ’f from the crain.

As has come on file on record byeJiId Evidences of many witnesses

that Shri Hart Govind AggaY was the apple of Prof. Ashok
Mitial’s cye, or we c;m@ the blue eyed boy for Prof. Ashok
Mittal. This 1s also @ZM from paper no. 3/122 (Annexure- B-6)

which bears the, 3{2@0‘} ture of Shri Hari Govind Agarwal. This paper

admiite H&“m delinquent officer, why it was sent to Shri Hari
Govind, 1s a question, which the Inquiry Committee asked itseli
and the reply came obviously because his interference was in every

matler of the University,

Here, an application moved by Sri Radhika Prasad bearing paper
no. 147/12402 (Annexure- B-38) which reads as follows:

. A D O D . o —

“ERTAT JET ST B T Tl fararm & ot w9

syzrarer farfer ayrsleren e & TSI Rl TRT T S

-{ t"v\/
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o e et 6 wETerEt W wdler 3T T e e §rr

In his statement (Annexure- A-H), Sri Radhika Prasad Yadav,

CW-1, has stated jon oath that the whole law department used to
follow the d.irectiions given by Sri Hari Govind Agarwal, Legal
Advisor. He used {0 take the files without entering them anywhere
or without inform’ing anybody to his house. All the officials were

bound to obey hlS orders. The ﬁﬁe relating to execution of

Rajendra Garg W‘ES ﬂse Emnded over to thns WMZHGS& which was

not returned: bﬁnek ‘to the demrtmem What prevented the

dehnquent officer, Prof. /—\shok. Mittal to &e action against Shri
Hari Govind Aaalwal for not briz 0@ ack the file to the
lepmimenl a]thou‘gh this amounts'ﬁ{ an oifence
As far as the name| ot Shri Har md Agznwﬂ is concerned even
after using all its W18d0n @ nquiry Committee could not finally
understand what is the\dOrr e(,t and actual name of AW-3, Shri Hari
Govind Ag anwal flendance sheets was also got prepared while
examining \%\anesses Relevant sheets are paper no. 174/12668,
35/12304 and l()1/12589 AH these three documents are being
annexed as Annexures- B- 57/1 to B- 57/‘5 to thm Inquiry Report.

In the attendance sheet, this Wltness mentmned his name as Har
Govind Agarwal. When thls Wlmess appeared befme the Inquiry
Committee, he was asked to show his Aadhar Card which was
shown to the Committee;and,its copy is paper no. 135/12305

(Annexure- B-56) ;in which the name of this witness 18 mentioned
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as Hari Govind Agarwal. Even the Vice Chance or has mentioned

Wis pame as Shri Hari Govind on page no. 6/343 which

Aunevure- B-14/1. The discrepancy furstly arose. when we went

through paper no. 176/12676 (Annexure-B- £7/7y, the copy of

PAN Card of Shri Hari Govind Agarwal, in which his name is

mentioned as ‘HAR GOVIND AG ARWAL® . The Matter could

have ended here if there would have been a single case ol spelling

¢

mistake, but the matter did not end in fact it flared all the mor
when Shri Hari Govind Agarwal was subjected to cross-

examination by the Ingquiry Committee, when he said that in the

B.Com. credentials his name is mentioned as Hari Govind Gupta

and in the L.L.B. and other academic record also along with the
Advocate registration his name is mentiongd as Hari Govind. The
Advocate registration of this th@ 15 paper no. 176/12678

(Annexure- B-47/9}, in which | e is only mentioned as Eari

Govind. Thus, it 18 evident‘t’f%g either this witness is concealing
facts from the Inouny‘?‘@nmlttee or that he is not speaking the
truth. Even in his @3 Bar Association Membership card which is

paper no. 176/4077 (Annexure- B%-"//%}), his names is menticned

as Hari Qg id Agarwal. This witness gave an affidavit, paper

no. 57/3744 (Annexure- B-29/7), before the Registrar in August,

2021 stating that Hayi Govind Agarwal and Hari Govind Gupia

is one and the same person. This thing was said for the first time

on 06.08.202, why it was said, now was a mystery for the Tnquiry
Committee who questioned AW-3, Hari Govind Agarwal on this
point, who still has the courage to say that he changed his surname

as Gupta in the 1980s because his father used write Gupta and to
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103.

104.

maintain his identity he changed his swmname irom Gupta to

Agarwal, now he is Agarwal. This witness could dare to state that:

ol g e ‘ e e o ) e D —_—
g 25 WaeER, 2020 O AW v W e e Iarer 6 3T E

i

Y
¥

£ B T e D i [ S
CRTE ERVET ET ST TITHE HEIOT OET WO T
U AP N - U o N W i 32 . n e e eV
et g W wet wmrrena g4 milde gut o 5 | g ue W
p 2
[ £ © SR Y,
ERIE

5 g0 MieE JTETer & AT d B, sUeRl %13 ener § T
(AN

rferes wrere & are B9 gu wety & ves yrad o fear H et
Wt R @ W0 Siviies foae & daterd 78 Bl
Thus, from the above, as we have said earlier, admitted facts need
no proof and from the statement and admission of this witness

himself, paper no. 135/12291 to @/]2295, 155/12572 to
155/12573 and 168/12631 (which is@ xed as Annexure- A-9/1

to A-9/8 to this Inquiry Repoﬁ)&@:lystal clear that appointment

ggarwai on the basis of credentials

was given to one Hari Mo
of Hari Mohan Gupta the affidavit was given as late as on
06.08.2021 after { %mmencement of this inquiry when this
witness reali cé\t]at he had a rope around his neck. There is
uothing Si\éord on the part of the University to show that they

appointed Hari Mohan Gupta. What could be more serious than

this?

Now, going through the papers, paper no. 6/343 (Annexure- B-
14/1) is the note sheet of the Superintendent (Law), this note sheet
was addressed to the Assistant Registrar (Law)/Registrar. This note
sheet says that there is excessive work in law department, most of

which is time bound and every petition has to be read thoroughly
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and report has to be sent (0 the concerned department and after
receipt of the reply, it is sent point-wise to the Advocate who gets
the affidavit prepared. Many other; work is done in the law
department prior for this work Shri H.S. Mathur and Shri Ramesh
Yadav, Advocates were appointed. The retainership fee of Shri
H.S. Mathur Advocate was fixed per month and Shri Ramesh
Yadav was paid as per the valuation of the case, hence, keeping in
view the seriousness and load of work, some fulltime Advocate
may be nominatéd to work in the law department. This note sheet
was written on 20.11.2020 and hurriedly Prof. Ashok Mittal passed
orders on 21.11.2020 appointing Shri Hari Govind, Shamsabad
Road, Agra on Rs. 30000 per month with immediate effect till
further orders. The delinquent officei was in such a hurry to
appoint Shri Hari Govind Agarwa @% did not bother to see his
credential or his academic r@r nor demarcated his work or
m}q and ‘immediate effect’ and ‘till

duties but the ‘homnerar
further orders’ was €c¥hitely mentioned. Now, on the basis of

this, on 25.11.20 ge‘ofﬁce order (Annexure- B/14/1 to B-14/5)

was issued 1is admitted by the delinquent officer, which was
issued fgk\})eriod of six months or till further orders whichever is
earlier. Thus, this office order was not in consonance with the order
passed by the Vice Chancellor, Prof. Ashok Mittal. Later on, the
services of Shri Hari Govind. Agarwal were extended from
25.11.2020 to six month or till further orders on an honorarium of

Rs. 30000 per month. The documents related to this appointment

are paper no. 6/343 to 6/347 (Annexure- B-14/1 to B-14/5) and

57/3734 to 57/3744 (Annexure- B-29/1 to B-29/7).
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This witness AW-3, Shri Hart Govind Agarwal stated on oath that

@
wy

he knows nothig on financial matter and he is unaware as to who
creates/sanctions posts for the University staff. He has admitted
that he addressed paper no. 104/9415 direct to the Vice Chancellor,
Prof. Ashok Mittal, although, financial matter was involved but
still he did not send it through the proper channel. Although, no
report was é&ced from him. He could not assign any reason why he

did so. H e had said that his job contract and condition were orally

onaa A AN R

qﬁted ‘[o him by . Plof Ashok Mittal. lhm ihe appommu,nt of Shri

Hari Govind Agarwal is null and V01d ab- mmo Thus, all the

amoum pald to Shri Hari Govmd Aoaiwal has beeu wmnszly pfudu

-
R ——_

to him. Although, Prof. Mittal, DW 8 has stat d on oath ﬂ]dl his

WO

decision to appoint Shri Hari Govmd Galwal was approved by the

Fxecutive Council in Its meetin S 26.11.2020 but as said
earlier something that is \19{1@{7 initio and nullity cannot be
approved. As regards a&%ng of the Executive Councﬂ 18

concerned, it will bedubther discussed in the later part of the repoit.

106. As far as causit ga‘ncial loss to the exchequer and the University

is concern < will have to revert back to the statement of AW-
1, Dr Q‘N}x Kumar Dixit, who was recalled on the request of Prof.
Ashok Mittal, who stated before the Inquiry Committee that
execution 2 of 98 was pending in the court of 17" ADJ. This
witness had giv.en, all the concerned papers in the officer of the Vice
Chancellor and because this matter was monitored by Shri Harl
Govind Agarwal, and had also briefed Prof. Mittal that the décree
holder is ready for compr omise at the decretal amount but Shri Hari

Govind Agarwal asked this witness 10 make some deal in this
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matter, when this witness refused, he was replaced by an Advocate
working on the criminal side. Shri Hari Govind Agarwal was also
questioned on this point in which he said that Shri Arun Dixit
Advocate never told him that the party is ready to cbn'tpz*omis;e o1
Rs. 1,58,000. This witness could not satisfy the committee why a
Section § Limitation Act and a restoration application was not be
moved before the court and instead an exorbitant amount of Rs.
428109.29 had to be paid.
As we have said carlier admitted facts need no proofs and after
sometime the delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal realized that
appointment of Mr. Hari Govind Agarwal was not a right decision
taken by him. On this point, the following statement on oath given
by the delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal, AW-8:

oft 5 witfre rmeTer @t Ag s ST ey

oft) e Tl TR g TEHIA g e a;gia@ 5 wreh 7E

o

& W &g T8l Tendl
1

SAT B g faesed el aerTel STy

But still no action was takenQéaﬁist him, neither he was

removed nor work was will;z.ka 1 or lessened from him as was
done with the Registr \3

As far as the documentary evidence on this point 18 concerned,
initially this witness AW-3, Shri Hari Govind Agarwal tried to
conceal some facts and deny some facts until he was compelled to
admit them when report was shdwn to him after he was recalled.
Paper no. 148/12463 to 148/12473 (Annexure- B-53/1 to B-53/11)
are documents which go to show that Dr. Arun Kumar Dixit was

permitted to go to Jaipur to examine the case relating to execution
Page 103 of 133
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case 2 of 98. The delinquent officer filed a letter of Dr. Arun
Kumar Dixit being paper 1no.

which he has said that the court has asked the parties to
compromise out of court and the decree holder is 1‘ézxdy for that. He
has also said that the Registrar has stated that the Vice Chancellor
will only take the final decision in the matter. This letter is dated

o™ March, 2021 (Annexure- B-57) what prevented the
b

delinquent officer from taking decision has been not brought on
record.
Initially, paper no. 164/12622 (Annexure- B-5§1/1) was denied by

the delinquent officer but he admitted paper no. 164/12623 which
is based on paper no. 164/12622 in which Shri Harl Govind
Agarwal in his report dated 03.04.2021 has said that there 1s no
stay of the Hon’ble High Court and the décreel@ ount of Rs.
4,28,109.29 can be paid to the decree 'llolieg)When Shri Hari
Govind Agarwal was asked about thﬁ\?féy order and report

regarding recommendation of pay he said that he gave this

| report on the order of the Ex@?ﬁ Court and Mr. Kailash Bind,
4

Assistant Registrar of the Uﬂi\/ sity. When this witness was asked,
he said that he addre \e@ aper no. 152/12559 (Annexure-B-62)
direct to the Vice Chancellor and there is every possibility that
some clerk would have brought the typed matter before him and he
signed it. This witness has been changing his version in every
breath. When this witness was asked how he wrote that the

proceedings were not stayed by the High Court, he pointed out the

following statement:
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These lines by no stretch of imagination could be understood

to be a stay order specially by an Advocate who had vast legal

knowledge and who was Legal Advisor to the Unjversity. Thus,

again we find the evidence of this witness unreliable and no

weightage can be given 1o this evidence of this witness. Thus, it is

evident that the fact that the decree holder was ready fto

compromise the matter on the original amount but instead of

settling there and then due to the lapses, negligence on the part of
Shri Hari Govind Agarwal and Prof. Ashok Mittal, the University

Thus, the Inquiry Committee

had to pay the excessive amount.

concludes that this charges are partially proved. Although, Shri
hok Mittal gf&ot related to

- : .
Hari GQV&Q& Agarwal, Prof.

gvemiw finan cially.

Hari Govi};d Agarwal and Prof. As

each other but by appointing Shri

‘Ashok Mittal unnecessary burd

Findings on Chau%ﬂ@lle. 06

110. Charge no. 06 has been fran‘}g gainst the delinquent officer, Prof.

Ashok Mittal that he dg\ggt“get the colleges inspected by the panel

approved by the EX utive Council, made panels of his own

choice, and committed irregularity in selection of the teachers in

self-financed colleges. The matter of appointment of teachers in

self-financed colleges have already been taken up with Charge no.
01.

111. As far as the or
of Prof. Ashok Mittal, DW-8, is important. He has stated that when

al evidence in this case 18 concerned, the statement

(f\// " Ppage1050f133
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applications were received during his tenure from the cotleges

that application was

demanding inspection of the colleges
! o >

amined by the affiliation departiment, ai nd after getting a repott

I

from the affiliation departmert, experience and able teachers were
gppmnmd i the ingpection committee. We have noticed that a

Mm(ﬂ zhmk thai th(, o{hu Pmicsso

c'j(\j”{nmré‘ﬂ .s Dld Plof -”Asholﬂh

an&tcachew were muompumt and incapable of inspection.

A very strange point has been rais sed by Prof. Mittal in his
statement that there 1s 10 approved panel in the University since
long and even at present. Admittedly, Prof. Ashok Mittal was in
the University since February, 2070 Wc do not cnow What

d4 by :}_ h

prevented him from getting ‘Lhe panel hom a)@

Executive (,ounul ﬂthou«Jh he was pla(z’l\{hwy constituting
*comimuues for’ evelyﬂlmo hven n ’me I:.{&”lh\/e Coum ﬂ *\lcxym
unimportant matter were taken up b@ hy this most important
?‘tety and Prof. Ashok Mittal,
full

matter was not taken up, remains
who appeared before the‘iig iry Committee and had

opportunity 1o meet out‘\kb case, failed to state why he did not

N
chock out a committee and got it dpplOVBd from the Executive

R

Council and got mspectxons done by the unauihoxwed comﬁtxwdf,

YA

‘committees with T hus ‘w e

a 1epehuon of a set of a onfe SO1S

SN

oty

WIS

conclude that Prof. Ashok Mittal is guilty of charge no. 06 and ht,
commifted grave irregularity in not getting the colleges inspected

properly.

W’fﬁ% IO
Q/
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114.

115.

116.

Findings on Charge No. 07

The delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal has been charged as i

~ Y

gave promotion and other benefits to the teachers against whom
the vigilant department had filed an FIR.

Tn this regard, Prof. Mittal has said that mere filing of an FIR would
not disentitle any teacher from promotion or other benefits. The
copy of FIR against Prof. Anil Kumar Verma and others is on

record as paper no. 104/9419 (Annexure- B-19/2). Prof. Ashok

Mittal has further stated on oath that he has not granted promotion
to any teacher and has neither given any undue benefit to any
teacher. This statement on oath is uncontroverted and there 1S
nothing on record to prove that the delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok
Mittal gave promotion and other benefits to teacl():s%&iyho are not
O

delinquent officer,

eligible for the same.
Thus, charge no. 07 is not proved agains

Prof. Ashok Mittal and he is exoneratgdrdbm charge no. 07.

Findings on ChAPet No. 08
o

ainst the delinquent officer that he

Charge No. 08 was framg
has close terms with &\ ucation mafias who were found gutlty
on enquiries and when the Registrar sent the enquiry report to the
Government, his rights were seized that is how the Vice Chancellor
t‘nisuséd hiS post. This charge is in two parts, firstly, the close terms
with the education mafias and second, seizing of charge of the then
Registrar. We are inclined to take the second part first. The then
Registrar Shri Anjani Kumar Mishra was examined suo motto by

the Inquiry Committee as AW-6 who stated on oath that on 257
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February, his rights were seized by the Vice Chancellor, Prof.

Ashok Mittal, When this witness was thoroughly cross examined

by the delinquent officer on this point and asked whether he was

removed from his post 1o which witness AW-6 Shri Anjani Kumar

Mishra replied that he was not removed from his post, but the work

of education department, affiliation department, residential

department and legal department was taken from him due to which

the aforesaid files were not moved through him and the file

sent directly fror tt AsmstantReglsUals to the Vice Chancellor.

has referred to the provisions of Section 16 of.the..

o

This witness

Uttar Pradesh State Universities Act, 1973 and Section 2.08 and

7Chapter-«XVII’‘L)?tlhe First Statute.

117. As far as Section 2.08 of the First Statute is concerned is mentions
the duties of the Registrar as far as Chapter X@é@n@@med, both
are very clear and specific. Section 2.08 ¢ gé First Statute runs as

follows: : -.3\?“

he Act, it shall be the duly of

“Subject to the provision:
the Registrar: Q

(a)to be the cu 13(/1(”1 of all properties of the University

unless %Bwise provided for by the Executive Council,

(b)to issue all notices convening meetings of the various

authorities referred to in Section 1 6(4) with the approval

of the competent authority concerned and to keep the

minutes of all such meetings;

(c) to conduct the official correspondence of the Court, the

Executive Council and the Academic Council;
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(d)to exercise all such powers as may be necessaiy o
expedient for carrying mito effect the orders of the
Chancellor, Vice-Chancellor or various. authorities or
bodies of the University of whicl he acts as Secretary;

(¢) to represent the University in suit or proceedings by or

against the University, sign powers of attorney-and verify

pleadings. . ...

As far as Chapter- XII of the First Statue is cmﬁemed it relates to
affiliation of new colleges. As far as Section 16(4) of the Uttar
Pradesh State Universities Act, 1973 is concerned, it reads as

follows: :
“16(4) The Registrar Shall be responsible for the due custody
~ of the records and the common seal of the University. He shall
be ex-officio Secretary of the Executive Coups 'the Cotrt
(The Academic Council and the Admisslﬁ;\'&(mnnitfée) and
of every Selection Committee for apgt{%hnez'zz oft‘e.ac/wm of
the Unz%ﬁzz’f and shall be [ T to place before these
authorities all such Z,'TZfOT'HQ}%ﬁ as may be necessary for
transaction of their bz-csi.n.ks / He shall also perform such other
duties as may be | \(33 -ibed by the Statutes and Ordinances
are required, from time to time, by the Executive Council or
the Vice Chancellor but he shall not, by virtue of this sub-

section, be entitled to vote.

These provisions also do not come to the rescue of the delinquent
officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal because these provisions relate to the

powers of the Registrar and not the Vice Chancellor.
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119.

None of the above provisions could satisfy this Inquiry Commuttee
that the Vice Chancellor did not have the power to withdvaw
certain amount of work from the Registrar but it was always
" 3

I

expected that all the files should have been moved through the

Registrar and even due fo the Registrar being overburdened wiil
work, at least file should have travelled through him. Seizing of
work is a different thing d withdrawing ne work is different
work is a different thing and withdrawimg some work 1s.different
aspect of the matter. Whether a Vice Chancellor could withdraw
some department from the Registrar is not an issue in this matter
but this part is sure that the powers of the Registrar were never
seized. The copy of the order passed in this regard is paper no.

10/861 which is being made Aunnexure- B-16/4 to this Inquiry

Report, which goes to show that the files relating to the above

mentioned departments shall be sent by the Assista Cgistrar to

the then Vice Chancellor for orders and apprmigi\.gﬁggl seizur
rights of Registrar does not stand proved. ..}\?“

Coming to the first part of this charge,@\ea\ies that the delinquent
officer was having close relation WiQ%ﬁcation mafias. Mainly the
name of Chacha Vishal Singh k @a Mahavidyalaya have cropped
up in this regard whose % ger is admittedly Mr. R.K. Gupta.
This Inquiry Committee would be failing m its duties if the
Committee admits Mr. R.K. Gupta to be an education matia
because only on the basis of oral evidence of AW-1, Arun Kumar
Dixit, AW-2 Mr. Rahul Solanki, AW-4 Mr. Rajendra Singh and
AW-5 Ms. Megha Bansal. We cannot call him an education malia
but the Inquiry Committee would definitely like to mention some

facts connecting Chacha Vishal Singh Kanya Mahavidyalaya and
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the delinquent officer. Paper no. 10/858 to 10/861 (Annexure- B-

16/1 to B-16/4) is a report by the panel of officers who inspected

this college and found that on physical inspection of the college,
the building was in dilapidated condition and there was no
evidence that the college was in a running condition besides no
teacher, official or student was found in the college and the
committee recommended that the affiliation of this college be
withdrawn. This report is dated 24.02.2021. Although the
delinquent officer denied this report but it appears that this denial
Wa.s just to save his skin. In as much as Mega B‘énsalg AW-5 has
emphatically on oath said that Rakesh Gupta is the Manager of the
Chacha Vishal Singh Kanya Mahavidyalaya where she took
admission 2013 in the B.Ed. classes and she also clId the fess, but
Rakesh Gupta, the Manager, did not giy 1 admmsmn nor
permitted her to sit in the classes. S Qher said that fees
deposited by her was also not IENXXB there is no building,
washroom or facility of water 01‘@: ricity. In support she has filed
copy of her affidavit submitt§g to the District Magistrate, Agra and
copy of application gibwitted to Regional Upper Education
Officer, Agra. Co&@receipt of fee of Rs. 20000/-, Rs. 31250/-
and copy of complaint sent by many students regarding Chacha
Vishal Singh Kanya Mahavidyalaya to the Vice Chancellor, Agra
University, with was sent in the year 2017. The documents filed by
her are paper no. 128/12200 to 128/12207, which was annexed as
Annexure- B-55/1 to B-55/8 to this Inquiry Report. This

application does not pertain to the tenure of the delinquent officer

but is indicative of the fact that there is something fishy going on
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in Chacha Vishal Singh Kanya Mahavidyalava. AW-4. i,

1

Raojendra Singh was also examined, who also said that Dr. Rakesh
Gupta, Manager of Chacha Vishal Sing oh Kanya Mahavidyaiaya
ased to usurp the fees of the students. 1o classes were going o il
the college, there were no basic anmcnities in the college and the
Manager used to misbehave with the g irl students. The Manager.
kesh Gupta has misappropriated huge funds due to which some
students committed suicide and the marriage of some girl stud
were called off. This witness also submitted relevant app slications
support of his statement, the latest one being dated 28.09.2020
which was during the tenure of the delinquent officer. The
documents submitted by Mr. Rajendra Smgh are paper no.

79/12208 1o 129/12213 which 1s annexed as Annexure- B

g

to B-54/6 to this Inquiry Report. When witness A@ Rajendr

Singh was cross- examined by the delinquent offiger, he said that
he had no pusmml orievance with Prof. ‘%(\ Mittal but bie has [
Rakesh-Guptat mt t1] ‘}%M /‘L ;ol\ MI al is thw‘

uo{ dy can harm him. A]‘thowh ?{k‘is al 62118(1}/ evrdmw uut we

hem d fy om M] i

Care mdmcd 10 1001\ mto ﬂl@@ 1ce of Ms Mcuin Bansal, AW

5 &Hd Ml Rayj mdm Smci‘s??—'\w -4, bwausc both {hc:sc \mmc
had no jemom] éne{/‘gwes a@amst Plol Ashuk Mmal and !hc‘
also did not have any axe to grind against Prof. Ashok Mittal.
The witness summoned by the Inquiry Committee namely, Mr.

Anjani Kumar Mishar, AW-0, has stated on oath that Shri Rakesh
Gupta, Manager of Chacha Vishal Singh Kanya Mahavidyalaya

used to sit in the office of the Vice Chancellor or his P.A. daily for

about five hours. He has further said that:
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This witness AW-6, Shri Anjant Kumar Mishra was not cross-

examined by the delinquent officer, hence, his statement m this
régzu'd went unrebutted which can safely be read by the Inquiry
Committee. 'The delinquent officer who examined himgelf on oath
before the Inquiry Committee could not give any af) %ﬂoxy T
p]z us bie reason as to why he du{ not dkc dt.ib\n n the matter of

Y}-{u;ge the Iui HIY

Ch acha Vlchal Sm”h Kanyd M i QV](‘}V(I :

Committce concludes hdi ah]s ( hdtf.
against the delinquent officer, A hok Mittal 1 as much as
there 1s no evidence 910 1ts of the Registrar but there
is evidence that th@ .&bquent officer, PlOI /xshok Mit.’ezm

favuumd Chacha thal Sm<>h K(mya I\/Eahav:dyahya and was

CO“ amly in LGUCh W] h D1 Ral ] Gupta Mazm“e} ofﬂ cha

v ,is:hal Si h Kanya I\/mhawdyﬂlaya

Findings on é’fmyge Ng. (9

&_) <&

Charge No. 09 has been framed to the effect that during the tenure

of the delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal, scam and

. 08 is part mHy pm\/ ed™
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misappropriation of crores of rupees was done in the affiliation
department, many seats of B.P.Ed and M.Ed. were mcreased
illegally by appointing his own man and electricity charges were
not realized, thereby causing financial loss and \"iﬁl;ﬁti}}éﬁ the
provisions of Financial Hand Book.

This charge is in three parts, firstly, the charge of affiliation scam,
secondly, non-realization of electricity dues from the residence.
therein and thirdly, non-realization of dues from the two canteens.
We will take the affiliation part first. The report bears many
applications for increase of B.P.Ed. seats in the session 2020-21. A
perusal of letter written by the Superintendent, Affiliation
Department on 27.10.2020 addressed to the Registrar/Vice
Chancellor, he has put a note which is admitted by the delinquent

officer which is paper no. 52/3659 (Annexure- B-26/ vich has

recommended increase of seats in the year 2020-2&@?&1, a perusal
of this shows that the sessions 2020-21 mﬁ\&’ha\/e; begun but
practically in the end of the year, the se@é Kj‘ishna,_Collegé of

Seience was illcnga,scd fro_m 20 to3 Q\%Sha Educational Institute

—were proposed to increase ﬂ‘\o}ﬁ 20 to 80,

was increased from 10 to 90 al&i@ —Imjaact Institute, Agra, seats

bSO P 0

on which a remark was

put by the Registrar that 20 percent may be allowed for approval

o iz

fmmtempmmy ”éfﬁliated colleges as approved by the affiliation
committee. The delinquent officer wrote a note on the aforesaid
paper stating that he‘discussed the matter with the observer
affiliation department and thereafter permission was granted from

the present session 2020-21 in the light of covid-19. This order is
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dated G7.01.2021 Above tus ofacr. v Fid a hand Wit s

PR

CIam next session 2020 2]

Chis order is dated 25

—

cach other because one order says that

implemented from the cession 2020-21 and the other says 1 i

will be nmp!.cmczz’i C

_lo B-Z 7I2) was ade o6
..... 98.12.2020 by the Kyishna College of Science und Rural
Technology, Agraa filiated to Dr. Bhimrao Ambedkar U niversity
Agra. This compl'a,int~cum~applicaimn has stated that their file for
extension of seats, after completing all the formalitics was lying
with the Registrar {or about two months, afigr reminder was sent,
then on 23.11. 7020 the file was sent - office of the Vice
Chancellor for extension of s scats. '} "b\h(mp remamed in the othice
of the Vice Chancellor foron \é}t&{%andtm days and ultimately
on 26.12.2020, the seals Yahanced from the next financial
year i.e. from 2021 22 Qn,reas the matter of enhancement of seats
was discussec eyear 2020-21. Thus, this file was pending
with the Uﬂ\‘iﬁ*&?\

stitute moved an application on 26.09.2020, tor increase of seats.

y for three months and three days. Again, this

Even on 22.10.2020, Usha Educational Institute, Mathura, moy ed

/1) to the

an application, paper 1o. 52/3669 (Ammexure-

effect that seats be increased in proportionate ratio fo the teachers.
The same type of application was moved by C-Tmpact Instituie,

being paper no. 57/3672 dated 22.10.2020 (Annexuic- b 17

EQ - L f




24 ci the debingquent otficer. Profl Ashok Muatal v
asted to admir or deny paper no. 5273661
IR heo just wrote “prior o my - tenure”. We ful
ndois s toany order of the Or ey ) e
Chancellor which may be even prior to a particular oiticer buas
definitely but it will be binding to those officer also who come
the 1 of such ovders. Any how this order is {
February, 2016 in which revised r <00umc;n order was issued {0
« iKrishna College of Science and Rural Technology, Agra for
: conducting B.P.Ed. programmes of two years duration with an
annual intake of 50 for one basic unit of 50 students from the
academic session 2015-16 subject to fulfilment of the conditions
mentioned therein before 29.02.2016.
127, This witness AW-8 was cross-examined on this 14 in which he
?
g
BN o A % SN . Y S
. e HAHIT GH “Hf(\ 4 Gl ’-‘?.,‘ TR
LinS
"sﬁ‘:?“ A HTE DI
| 128. When out of paper no. 11/8
: 17/44), paper no. 11/846 was shown to this witness AW-8,
which he had increased the number of seats in his own
% handwritings and had initialed on them, he explained that the
seats were decreased initially because the mumber of approved




tencliers in these schools were less, later on these colic

incrensed their teachers and demanded more se it and since the
procedure was already 100 late and examinations werc oo

conducied late due 1o cavid-19. hence, he approved the seats

according to the note sheet. Thus, even the o;dug *std by the

delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok I Mittal fumommdi tory to czacl*

offiE1 as mentioned above he de 1 ﬂqupm omcvl onf hok

Mhml <1d not even bmhel io verify whethcx teachus as

< 01 not Lmd

qcz

muﬂm%d were admlly appmn&d by tl o He

Wl t,ihel the teacher stuc kntb mho Wao m consonanco or n@‘r HP

e P S g i

hdﬁ funhex bdld that thu is 1o mblc by the Staie Govemmcm

101 ﬁxa‘uon oF cats

gy

9. Tt was pointed out to him that the Registrar had put a note and
in pointno. 2 and 3, he had pointed out that mandatga daching
requirement are being given by the regulatory o@which will
not be completed if seats are enl hanced duﬁ{ he mid session
to which the delinquent officer repheg% he put up the matter
before the Assistant Registrar, Afe %T’Lm for discussion after

which he passed the orders 2\3\1 % rules’. This is how a Vice
Chancellor just slipped GK f the matter without passing any
appropriate order. We :N%U]d also like to 1cfex to the statement
ofthe witness ofthe delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal. This
witness is DW-4, Mr. Ancop Kumar, who is Assistant
Registrar, Affiliation. He said that after 17" February, 2021
when Prof. Ashok Mittal called this witness for discussion, he
went fo Prof. Ashok Mittal but he was busy. H had u,ad the

note of thf‘ Rc‘gl%tml that m ihat gbsmon sc,ais could HOL ‘m

e T

[ £
L\# ,/) {/ \ //




afiiliated ¢ bui he 3 ol | 1
' v the time it for the a fiﬁi“ilii(d‘-!'l.
When this withess, the delinguent officer, Frofl Ashok M
YW-5. vwas asked whether he had veritied or unot that e

Assistant Registrar had followed his divection or not. 6w lich
the witiess. DW-8. Prof. Ashok Mittal replied that there 18 0o
such (ype of procedure in this University, and It is presumed

that all orders passed by the Vice Chancellor shall be comy

with. Prof. Ashok Mittal has said m his stateiment that: "=

saiver aifore st s et A afg il el off sus

e

See ’I'ETQ Y e amae welgdl O ved Hui Al

Fretpe] Bl
el SEet o) Hifash ©Y d Sgent gl e zrd Traefana &
a1E g1 T arforent d 6 feres ofie evrle mﬁ it CR BRI RS

ST o SATETC LI leTehT EERCHE t& O st as ﬁ@' o
PO sart o o g = A Ghrargth! G e (8 TR

e

v

T e T &) el S S

9

481 Fa: B WL w1 A @T? St gl 7 180 feT T 1 ad |
FATY & ﬁ £T e 8 9 $ 8 oft of T e g <Rl ST T o

S BT g C«T%;J fraT TREIT YT As per his version, he did
this in antici @1 of the approval of the Executive Council,
who later on approved it. This witness has gone t0 the extent of
saying that: “UIZer T FAYSH od UHY B o S e, vEr
NEEIECRERCIRICEEIN] S HiRge s O ue e ferar ur
Br o 98 sl @7 die afg w1 oSS ar sed e off SRt

SecE Tt S T o hrerst ot foraferRmery sl ue ardd

fop ety Rueor 3wt S T 3 AT 90 L i € el &

st ¥ e e aden o aftalad e feur s 1 and has

¢ .
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& ford @ eiftger &t var g7 DW-4,
stated that when the matter of affiliation of Vaikanthi Devi
College, Agra came for approval before the Executive Council,

shri Naveen Agarwal had brought the note wigh him and asked

this witness to place it before the Executiv@®Suncil. This was
approved for the next session by the i&ﬁ:—d’ﬁon commitiee, but
the Executive Council mm‘cd,}\&“ ssion and  granted
approval from the running sgewen, as far as his knowleds

students had taken adlmsQ?‘nd without affiliation, teac hing

work was i progi ‘cqg{ #Se lacts relate to April, 2021, When
the same questi on@;g sut to the delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok

Mittal, he stated That:

o] el T ETIETC, ST 0 T e o e i e
ot gsd Gafea a8 oY) 99 sl5pvd] aal] wRIfereT & ug . Hi
THTHITE &) Srsgal 91 5ae "@’/63”7 U HTH, ) Grargar 1219 55

oft 37le 3 Gaer &5 912 o)
feiy s ger ’;‘ é’sf?f (B
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All these things are nothing short of illegalitics and
iregularities. Thus, seats of affiliated colleges were increased
against law and everything was not and smooth in the afftliation
artment, thereby, the dbllﬂ( uent officer, PredMshok |
rﬂinmmml lmu 10 14hu Umvusﬂy wﬁ@ legal ac
As far as the second point is concernggythe delinquent officer
Prof. Ashok Mittal, has stated iuzkiis statement that after he

joined as Vice Chancellor in Qv University, he expedited the

matter of realization oi tm y dues and arranged many

camps, hel h(,Q e held liable for this charge. in
support he exan Mr. Hari Mohan, DW- 7 (Annexure- A

19/1 to A-19/2), who said that Prof. Ashok Mittal directed him

to get prepaid meters installe d.‘ Prof. Ashok Mittal has not
committed any irregularity. In this regard, the note sheet may
be looked into. First of all, the Inquy Committee asked a
question asked to itself as to why the unauthorized occupants

us were not

o

were not evicted and why the dilapidated buildin

taken care of.

[




U2 orders were passed thar ke residents do pog e
connection, the elecirie supply may be disconnected, Now. it
happens, no list was prepared as to who were the unan]
CIISes were (,fiizz;‘;i<lzz£¢_rci and who were the

defaulters and what was the amount due against each defaulicr and
since. It did not lye in the mouth of Prof. Mittal to say that these
dues was prior to his taking charge. Besides this, it was his b

duty that as soon as he to

cunden
2, he should have {irst paid
attention to the outstanding dues of the government whicl

1 he did
not bother to do. Hence, we th

ink, he was neg]ig@nd in different

in realizing the electricity dues from the o ants w

hether they
were legal occupants or illegal occup

reason to »J,et the 1

‘ i fact, there was no
leg:

gal occup:mt\z\;imam

N possession and
recourse of law should have beg

] ken for il
Coming to the third point i\.§ecover‘y dﬁ l

canteen. One canteen \W—%"&mmng in the Paliwal Park premises and
he other was mzmil}%\éhc Khandari cam pus an

were outstanding against both the canteens, -

Dr. Avun Kumar Dixit has supporied |

111 eviction,

dues towards both the

dadmittedly ducs
The complaint AW-1,

s complaint and said that
dues were not recovered by the delinguent of ficer, Prof. Ash
Mittal. Let us see what Prof. Mittal h

ok

as to say in this matter. The
delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal has said (hat “Tgafyenasy
BT 3 T By ST & sy SR B e e 2 1o
T T ST IR SIS HRIT 40/3550 ST 40/3554 geraro yiiyf
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By means of the aforesaid statement, the delinquent officer, Prof
Ashok Mittal has nothing to do with the monefy due on the canteens
prior to his tenure. We-have yet.to hear a St&ténmnt like this from-

the rank of a Vice Chancellor We are Shocked that he could gather

the courage to say that 1}115 1esponsib1hty was of 1he Finance

“Officer and he had nothmg to do w1th the dues Whtch were pwdma

pum to his tenme He has further sald that “?ﬁ 27377—7?3%757?7 Eal 5673 o
e e O ety WWWM:QTtﬁ? 20;]13T7Q#7dﬂ
v/?ﬁ eﬁ‘ SHRIAT o HR 9] S 1% o 3 c??:‘ 8, &Td: 391 3G
SFaIfey =7 Rierar 91 o faan STl A o 3 & i yar ar
Fos 2 e e e A o e o ) s s
2016 8 errar 31 83 1R w0 & AN S1afe o) s 3 o

BT Al G B GelTsTien Tl geNdal w16 15 @idta 4 e
a1 918 vl forar 1 13 ?77%5@%‘ ST QYR ST 9 3 8 el 39
180 Yla1d 9T s 11 5%5% 0 G 1 & 7 rlfca "
Tt e g e 1 T 53 T Tl iz et e 7T
@ gifees w7 9 % I ) w1 T i @ w3 wa
liRaa & 7 a3 &1 5/7:75p apparent RV :fSC) 1 f}# ﬁFH‘? ETAC] £l B
Sen1 &1 FaTRIT) 7?/3? e iRt w e o7 sufora 93 Y FHeEl
Tl 1 | A7 T o o e i) e wmet & s g IR
fercli aretl 7 37 T 2 a7yt T S Ferald d ST TR 737
ferier wmyen =) g SIHeHR] 781 81 fad 3iferant At s1efia o g &
g 9l 215 e e 1 # gver) i @ Aia g,
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P36, This means that if the conractor of (he canteens would nor Fove
moved applications for the exemption of rent. then nobody wesis)

have taken the wouble of tooking mto the raatier of morey die

PR S P R R
ADCH e Canleens,

370 A perusal of the cross-examination of this witness AW-8. Praf

Ashok Mittal makes it erystal clear and evident {hat ai least in Juie.
2021, he came (o know that both (he canteen are m arrears of dues,
Although, this was a \/ézjy tmportant incident in his carcer. but he
could not tell after how many days he was seized from work. But.
from the perusal of the record, it m evident that he did have time 1o

mitiate procecdings for recovery of these dues and this is clear

violation of duties thereby causing huge financial loss to the

University because a person cannot take z»n_lv;wc of his

predecessors wrong and hie cannot repeat the wa just because
his predcccgsdr’ had also committed WIong (wl}\ went unpunished.
Any wrong act cannot act as pwccdom\:?gx xampler for another
Serson 0 S

138, Thus, the Inquiry Commitice Hifds the delinquent officer, Prof
Ashok Mittal guilty of C mlu“ no. 09 and concludes that he
committed a scam in {EQ\L) 1ation department, illegally increased
the seats of many colleges violating the Statutes, Tailed to realize

the dues against both the canteens and the electricity dues.

Findings on Charge No. 10

i 139, There are charges against the delinquent officer that during his

tenure he removed the Chartered Account, hercinafter referred (o

as the *CA”, and appointed a CA of his choice due to which the ;

e, Page 123 of 133
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140,

N

University had to suifer Mmancial Tosses and ponally was aino

nnposed upon the University due to this, None of tie witiosses,

A ™ 17 e TN e te e A XD ~ F
nenler AW-1. Dro Arun Kumar bt nor AW-20 Shirl i
Salanki could ol there 1s anvibiing on feed
- < Lt

i1 be sard that this charge 1s proved. i

the Tnquiry Committee does not find Prot. Ashiok Mitial guilty o

this charge and exonerates him from this charge.

Findings on Charge No. 11

Charge no. 11 has been framed against the delinquent oilicer, Prot,
Ashok Mittal that he and his people illegally withheld the bills of
Advocates and other employces
Shri AW-1, Dr. Arun Kumr Dixit has stated that his bills were
withheld and when asked for his payment, @. Hari Govind
Agarwal, the blue eyed boy of Shri Ashok Nt said that hie would
get his dues only if he pays 20 percen v‘:%\ he total amount and in
se of his failure, he will not be Qx fed any further work. When
AW-3, Shri Hari Govind Aggdval, was examined before the
Inquiry Committee, he sa x@g he never demanded any facility fee
[rom anyone inc uuns’i& Arun Kumar Dixit Advocate.
Now, we have tosek that the delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Miital
has to say in this matter. He has said that it was never brought to
his notice that Shri Hari Govind Agarwal demanded 20 percent
facility fee from Dr. Arun Kumar Dixit.
As far as the documents in this regard are concerned, paper no.

131/12267 to 131/12269 (Annexure- B-37/T to B-37/3) arc on

record, which go to show that a conmittee constituting of Shri 5.D.

AV " Page 124 of 133
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Paliwal, Retd. Judge, Sri S.IC. Bajpai, CA and Assistant Re egistrar,
Legal was constituted on 02.07.2021 to examine and audit and
report within 15 days and the list of Advocates whose matters had
to be examined were provided in paper no. 131/12269. The
forming of this committee was justified by ﬂ]c delinquent officer,
Prof. Ashok Mittal in his cross examination, in which he has said:
“41. 37 @ GRYT g7 ford e o 3% ST o STfeermen
ST Y71 & Fqel 199 72 Foredt o weror 8 v ety afifa
<1 13T 1397 791, fore Ok Qe Ugostowto R % =fies
SRR, 3787 9 U WIS THISTUE F GRS EGIECNIEIC]
1997) waw 9 3o wiild g sfewmien & fe @ YT B
yileror F352 ST % o YA 12 ST 4 ferest g, afs fareil
forT wizor 1o g9 & siferernredl s s @%m ST 1 7
Wﬁw&%ﬁvﬁ%ﬁuﬁﬁﬁm@ﬁm’%@aaﬁmmm&cw
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We are not here {o scrutinize or evatuate this

,_;
r

s report, but this report
was submitted on 30.07.2021 after a delayed period. The
delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal has said that this report be
read in his favour, but we are extremely soiry €0 say that this report

cannot be read in his favour because neither this report has been

accepted nor it has become final. As has been ag$cd by the
delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal himself i T e
112267 36 i S wi R a o s fodid B e e, @ an

=,

arfiget =6 & o Tl

£ SRR WU o VNI WS (=, <N S e N
R IR RCURC| e bT*f&G qr @l gdehl il
":)\ o ""'\' 99 - T - M 4

Heldelel” Buta perusal of the recor, 10W that this report has not

been accepted by the | mum% Suncil and the version of the

Advocates has been divec be taken by the Committee before

cescue of the delinquent Officer, Profl Ashok Mittal. Why the
matter was not referred to the Finance € omumittee, although, 1t was
4 matter involving finances remained a mysfery throughout the
mquiry, as Pmt \411’(“11)‘\>\/a Jignorant about rnany many things,

P

meaning ‘th’LLbV that 1111 date the bills of these ten Advocates arc

S‘iﬂ pemh ng Mmh blll 1S cmyhm huge amounts. Ahh(mﬂh this

pmtl 1as not bpen adn]de buts 01111 10Lwhly Calcuhl‘nng hn VLN
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Bonaiin vlish
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0 Chri Cridame Cast
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| Anurag Verma is entitled 1o Ry, | 70

Arun Dixit is entitled o Ras. 5,62,250.00, Sri Gagan Mehiy
itled to R, 1,99,775.00, Sri SN,

Puu( F:\

1.70,000.00 and Sri V.P. Sharma is entitle d to Rs. 34,500.00.

We are again making it clear that we are neither endorsing th

3
18w [N S AR

figures nor fixing the amount but‘jusi indicating that huge amounty

of the Advocates are due ‘Lowauﬁs m Umw’mry If the Unive mi

'LLIS: that noihma is 1(?(‘ or somet hmsz is due pay

dec well in Ume instead of keeping things poRRe. T he matte

can be aJ 1 sreciated by fc&lﬂﬂ” mio account i(ﬁ if the salary of a

salaried person is withhe 1d for even a m{% he gets annoyed and
Won‘ned OfbviQUSIy, it huge amof@: of Advocates fees and

expenses are withheld, it cann expected that the Advocates

would take keen interest in g pairavi for the University,

Fhus, the Inquiry C omms@t* finds that the delinquent office; L Prof.

Ashok Mittal guilt \C} wrge no. 11 and concludes that he is

found guilty of unnecessary withholding the payments of the
Advocates

Although, Prof. Ashok Mittal has in most of his decisions made the
Executive Council shoulder his hability, but, we are sorry to note
that he failed in this attempt in as much as the comumittee has given
its anxious consideration to the matter and spent a lot of time

varc*hmﬁ the wdgo ugmdm% dﬂd the minutes of the Executive

‘@u L/ g
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Council but woour suprise, most of e mindies O the v
ceordimges did not mateh with what actuatly vanspired dus

R DOANS K[]{‘UH noticed in .ljl;iLLJLl,\\( Frod I’(:_h‘f S E |
M. Fa.l'ajann Kumar Mishra, the then Registrar of the Univ e

20.01.2021 which was finally signed
said the better about the Executive Council meeting. A procedure
is laid down for conducting the Executive Council mecting and
practically in none of the meetings, the procedure was followed in
as much as, there was no proper circulation of the agenda, there
Wwas 1o proper minutes prepared, circulation of minutes lacked and

many other mai )datoly provisions were not gom@d with. We are

afraid that the delinquent officer, Prof. @( Miital did not

maintain dipuity even while conductin > E ALU!U\ Council

s whi X E thro swh (he minute of

meetings in Js much as while g

%"” Fhis.s (cThent is not acceptaoi from the mouth

of a VILCQ hance \g\h}wf /\nod\i ﬁal AW- 3 hl S given answer

to i’hés in ﬂu, 1<;Howmo way:

gy %14 YRe % [l @ v Ry fawrd e el o
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Thus, it is evident and clear that Prof. Ashok Mi ttal, delinquent
officer, has been committing breach of trust of the Executive
Council members throughout his tenure.
Although, there is not a char ge against Prof. Ashok Mittal in this
regard but, the committee members would be failing in their d uty
if they do not bring the following facts on record:
Mr. Rahul Solanki-AW-2 2, who was also the complainant and who
came before the Inquiry Committee supported his affidavit and
filed an audio clipping in a pen drive. This chppmg was of no use
to the Inquiry Committee because it could not help the committee
. any manner either for or a gainst the delinquent officer. But, a
Very important factor 1"eli1ains that after this witness filed the audio
recorded pen drive, he was recalled for cross c@\qination by the
delinquent dfficef Prof. Ashok Mittal and e WAs cross examined
by the dehnquont officer. In the states of‘ AW'—Q, shri Rahul
Solanki, madvertenﬂy the statemen@S i Ashok Mittal was also
recorded while Rahul Solanki we ing cross examined. This part
has been encircled by the\§ ink by Chairman of the Inquiry
Committee which shall 'orm part of the record and which shall
not be evidence, B@%Qm we see that the delinquent officer again
put the rope around his neck himself by stating that by stating as
follows
Wzﬁm‘?%wr 03 3171 < 0 3 0 0, 008 413 w7t
& 9% W A7 9 S T A @ e sie g o o RERlE
1 57 Sl a1 T o1y e 7w iy o ST R I &
ﬁéawﬁa/aan?ﬁvﬁz%qmﬁaéfﬁﬁa YRETST %)
el ST 8] ST BT 7 ) 3R qre 747 8 9 50 D s
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I51. Thus, he has apemﬁcaﬂy admuied mar Mz Rahui SoIanI <1 came to

his residence along with others and sat 1n his drawing room. A
million dollar question arises as to why Mr. Rahul Solanki w ould
g0 to the house of the delinquent officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal
uninvited in the night specially Whul he had filed complaint

against Prof. Ashok Mittal. Although, Prof. Ashok

Ntal has said
that he sco]ded and drove away Rahul Solankj gf'oﬂzers from his
house but this version is not palatable and g@mble by the Inquiry
Committee because for outsiders entesNo the Vice Chancellor’s
house would amount to intrusion Qﬁ‘n‘ess pass and specially in
this phase when Prof. Ashok ‘1\?&1 was facing an enquir y. As a

prudent citizen and as a me % of safc:ty f01 ]um and hIS fa mnly

he xhould at onc,e have 1‘eﬁmtcd the matter to the Dohce Whibh he

f ailed to do AI ﬂns cmates a doubt i the minds of the members of

pr——

he Inquuy Cemlmﬁeu

152, In théy vzdyco 16001dmg of the 111eetmg of the Lxecumve Cmncﬂ
daled 20.01.2021 at time 1. 14.37 onwards, when the discussion of
mamtenance of the file was going on, the Reg1st1a1 said that even
the service records ofmany pe@plc were not available in the o fficer

e st s i

at which many of the Executlve Councﬂ membels most probably
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who were teachers said that their service books were at the
cesidence, hearing this also the Vice Chancellor, Prof. Ashok
Mittal did not take this matter seriously, besides, i the video
recording of the Executive Council dated 20.01.2023 at time 4.39,
Prof. Hem Prakash specifically pointed out that what is discussed
in the meeting is not written in the minutes, QmuL they are not
circulated, whichis nota good practice, but this was also-ignored.
At 28.47 time, a decision was taken of preparing a committee for
deciding the semouty but that does not also find place in the
minutes. Another such emmplc 1S the matter of Mr. Saket Sharma
who is said to have taken extra payment on which a decision was
taken in the Executive Council meeting that the excessive payment

received by him should be realized from him, but this fact also does

not find place in the minutes. Thus, pr actically, theé&g&apd the

proceedin gs of the Executive Council do not E}}\l ‘ hd we think this
can be termed to be breach of trust. .’3\?’*

Besides, it is very strange that the € Chancellor, Prof. Ashok
Mittal who has signed the mges (paper no. 123/11294 to
123/11463, Annexure- B- o B-49/166) had the courage to
deny certain items. If%x\jj%ls denied by him on page 123/1 1386
to 123/11390 (Annexule- B-49/92 to ]B 49/%) were against the

proceedings ¢ of the meetngs, there 15 no reason why he puts his

swnatme on the minutes, besides, he has also dcmed the mmut(—'s

at paper no. 123/11328 to 123/11334 (Anncxure— B 49134 to B-

s

49/4@) hc, had fu1t1161 gathere

to the minutes Whlch ale papel noz ]23/11350 to 123/1 366
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(Annexure- R-49/56 to B-49/72). This is only a single example.

All the minutes and video recordings are in the same position.

154, Although, it is not a matter of inquiry, but the del mqm nt office
Prof. Ashok Mittal has definitely committed financial irvegularity
and admitted facts needs no proof. The admission of the delinquent

officer, Prof. Ashok Mittal is being xepioduced as below:
T FAR W@UWHF?T@? HER Wﬁ‘qfﬁ“@? CF(PT@, ﬁ{aru T
ﬁ}gﬁmmaffnfe%ﬁa FEwE it sgn @A HTEa 44 ﬁv’aa%f 7
7o e foer! 21 3G+ y5f} 7 Taran 7t faa &l ﬁt{%‘sﬂ% dﬁa%me HE;
r{ﬁ?'cb P < we SiieeRt 379 Y10Q0 GHIT @ Far el arfas 4 dar
a7aT R Gehl B A e | ol e w%aﬁﬁﬁwﬁdaﬁﬁﬁf@
i mr@?sﬁ?ﬁ &l fad 7 w2 g1ed 1 IR B, Sl FAIell Fe fose a9
Wﬁzmwaﬁrﬁmﬁm?mﬁ 7 75 7 yar el
Thus committing financial irregularities in the Um@@y stands

fully pxoved beyond doubt. ~3\
155. Thus, qummmg up the whole enquiry, \{vﬂjbo‘l}cl_udc_wt}}a‘t the

& :
dquuen’[ officer, prof. Ashok Mittal mted guest faculties

against the plowsmns 01 1aw t]elelibtﬁusmg ﬁmncm] loss 1o me

S
Umvelslty He also commltte

e
atute/ Haud Book pr mted‘@

(S

M Neelaj Goyal 1emovedihé pewmus Ad\}oca’te M1 G’igdn

T WMchta and mducted Shri Vlvek Rai Advocate and also mwde

AT A

[

unmccssaly “appointments,’ buldemng the Umvuzsr‘{y wﬂly

unnecessary hablhty Fulthm he also appomted Qhu Han Govmd 7

W

Agalwcﬂ "llcoally without going mto hlS academlc 16001(18 cmd

RS

cr edwtlals causmg ﬁn Lhel ﬁnanmal loss to the Umvemty and got

g
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d‘ld Lommmed irregularity in appointment of teachers. He further

M\«Psmed Mr. R.K. (mpta I\/fcmd ger Of the dmcha Vist ;?ﬁ S nwh

Kan ya Mahavzd /alav’a emd L;ldclmed Lhc, then Re<*m;:n Fmd I he

Cummuted ﬁnam Ial nwaulamv in ainlzauon ﬂleudl muunwd

the scatb f’nled n hlS du‘nes to recover elec‘mczty durs cnd canteen

"o, .

mthhdd the bills. of the /;d{;ocates thhout any reason.
156. The Inquny Repalt is being submitted to the Hon’ble Chancellor

for dppmpuate action according to law.
. S /
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